DNA 7 FHs

Sometimes called the family of “William of Orange” (Fh905)

DNA 7 Kits

1592 Samuel and Abigail Choice Bolling , Laurens, SC, 
Fh610
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

1809 Samuel and Abigail Choice Bolling , Laurens, SC, 
Fh610
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

31223 Samuel and Abigail Choice Bolling , Laurens, SC, 
Fh610
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

Group 7 

1592, Bolling, William 1705-1772, Fh905, through son Samuel, Fh610, R1b, 
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29

31223, Bolling, William 1705-1772, Fh905, through son Samuel, Fh610, R1b
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29

36240, Bolling, William 1705-1772, Fh905, through son John, Fh367, R1b, 
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29

1809, Bolling, William 1705-1772, Fh905, through son Samuel, Fh610, R1b, 
13, 25, 14, 10, 12, 13, 12, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29

Orange,VA-created 1734 from Spotsylvania


7
Thornberry (UK,probably father or brother of William Fh905) w1763,d1763


7
William (Fh905) t1737,l1749,l1751,l1753,dc1772,wi1772,w1773 Rin=13519


7
Ann (Fh905 spouse) r1777,r1782,w1790,d1790


7

John (Fh367,905a) r1762,nw1773,l1784,r1792,l1794--removed to Oglethorpe GA c1795


7


Jane Jean Elizabeth (367b) bc1770,mc1792 (Miller Bledsoe)


7


John Jr. (Fh394,367c) t1783,t1784,t1788,t1790,m1791 (Susannah Bell), t1798, r1803,







r1805-then moved to Ga. by 1818


7



Milly (394a) b1805



7



Harriet (394b) bc1808


7


Ann (367e) r1793


7


Jonathan (maybe Fh4475,367g) t1784


7


Milly (367b) m1800 (John Harris)


7


Thornberry (Fh737,367i) b1777


7


William (Fh774,367c) b1765,r1787-1797,m1788 (Phoebe Hawkins)


7

Samuel (Fh610,905c) l1749(see comments),r1788


7

Sarah (905f) nw1790


7

Thornberry (905e) l1784,r1785,nw1790,t1782-t1799


7

William (905c) d1778 in service

Above are events Orange County, VA. It is not complete family groups.
++++++++++++++++
7

Alexander Bolling was in Clarke County, Georgia. Also there were Samuel (Fh623,367f,7), Henry (Fh252,367h,7), Thornberry (Fh737,367i,7), Edward, William D., Thomas, Milly (widow of Thomas, Fh734), and Elizabeth. Thought all might be siblings. (901)

7  252. Henry bc1771-1843/m>1806<1812 Susannah Brewer--His father was John #367



A descendant kit 36240 tested into DNA 7

a*
Burwell Brewer


a*b
Samuel Henry bc1806/Elizabeth -----  --See 623c


a*
John Henry 1810-1855/1/w m1832 Mary C. Stewart, 2/w m1843 Mrs. Mary C. (Hatch) Rielly



A descendant kit 36240 tested into DNA 7

a
William Ransom--See 623c


a*
James Madison 1812-1852/m1844 Mary Ann Saffold


a*
Elizabeth Ann bc1815-1820/m1837 Alfred Anderson


a*
Susan H. bc1815-1820/m1841 Burwell Blanton


*
Mention in Father's July 1, 1842 will.


a
Children per source #901


b
Source #900 states Samuel was in Henry's will but was not a son.



Source #900 has 1830 Census of Clark, Georgia as 1 male 40-50, 1 female 40-50, 3 males 10-15, 

2 females 10-15

7  
Fh252,367g 
Henry Bolling (Boling) was born about 1780 in Virginia. (901) Henry Bowling was the son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bowling (Fh367,7). By estimate he was born about 1776 since Henry Boling was on his individual tax list in 1797 in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. It has been said he owned land in Oglethorpe County, Georgia (Deed Book 2, page 395). 

A descendant kit 36240 tested into DNA 7.
It has also been stated Henry Boling was a citizen of Clarke County, Georgia. (279)

Henry's siblings etc.

 I found Samuel Boling (Fh623,367d,7) in Clarke County, Georgia, who married 1797 and died 1806. Also there were Henry, Thomas, Edward, William D., Alexander, Milly, Elizabeth, and Thornberry born 1777 in Virginia. Thought all might be siblings or otherwise related. (901)
Marriage and Children

Henry Bolling (Boling) married Susannah Brewer. (901) Henry Boling had a wife Susan. (900) They had children: 

a.
Burwell Brewer. (901) Burwell. (900)

b.
Samuel H. (901) Samuel Henry. (900)

c.
John Henry. (901) John Henry. (900)    

d.
William Ransom. (901) They may have had a son William Fletcher Boling (this would be 895b) but if so he is not mentioned in Henry Boling's will dated July 1, 1842. (900) 

e.
James Madison. (901) James M. (900)

f.
Elizabeth Ann. (901) Elizabeth Ann. (900)   

g.
Susan H. (901) Susan H. (900)  

All were born in Clark County, Georgia. (901) 

Movement

Henry Boling and Samuel Boling in Oglethorpe County, Georgia are under list of tax defaulters in 1794. (900)

1797

Henry Boling was on his individual tax list in 1797 in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. It has been said he owned land in Oglethorpe County, Georgia (Deed Book 2, page 395). 

1799

Henry Boling (367h,Fh252) of Oglethorpe County, Georgia and Thomas Landrum of Oglethorpe County for $684.00 paid by Landrum, Land. Original grant to Randolph Givons in 1785, Givson sold to Ferdinand Finezay Aug 27, 1792.Conveyed land to Henry Boling in 1799. s/ Henry Bolling, Witness: John Bowling (Fh367, or son 367c), A. Hoag, Peachy Bledsoe. (1414)(1500)(1725)(Oglethorpe County, Georgia, Book E, page 395)

1804

Oglethorpe Co. Ga. Deed Book D, 1800-1806: page. 400   20 Jan. 1804: William George & Martha, his wife, to Henry Boling (Fh252) , all of said co., for $800, on Big Creek waters in said Co., 190 acres beg. maple cor., N56W178 poles to white oak cor., S34W24 poles to chestnut cor., S31 1/2 E 380 poles to hornbeam cor., on Big Creek, up creek to chestnut cor., N47W96 to elm cor., on branch, up branch to beg., adj. N.W. by Cauhaun, S.W. by Mitchell, S.E. by B. George, S. by Render, N.W. by Travis George, is part of tract granted to William George, Senr. by Gov. John Houston, 21 Sept. 1784, in fee simple. Signed: Wm. George, Martha George. Test:  Bailey George, John Boling.  Oglethorpe Co.: proved by Bailey George & John Boling, 21 Mar. 1804, Bechy Bledsoe, J.P. (1527)

1807

Page 477 Oglethorpe Co. Ga. Deed Book E. 1806-1809: Henry Boling (367h,Fh252,7) of Clark County, Georgia to John Boling (Probably Henry's brother John Fh394,367c,7) of Oglethorpe Co. Ga. for $1,000 on Big Creek waters in Oglethorpe Co. Beginning on John Boolling's line, N56W 178 poles to cor. , S34W24 poles to cor., S31 1/2E 380 poles to hornbeam cor. on Big Creek, up meanders of creek to cor., N47W90 poles to cor. on branch, up branch to beg., 197 acres, is part of survey granted to William George by Gov. John Houston, 21 Sept. 1784, in fee simple.  [signed] H. Boling.  Witnessed: George Y. Farrow, Moses Bledsoe, Oglethorpe Co.:  proved by George Y. Farrow & Moses Bledsoe, 10, Feb. 1807, William Ford, J.P. Recorded 24th July 1809. (1414)

Henry Boling bought land 1805 in Clark County, Georgia. In 1806, Clark County, Georgia, Grantor: Samuel Boling (deceased) Grantee: Henry Boling, Administrator's bond. (900) Henry Boling (Fh252), along with Edward Boling (Fh203), Thomas Boling (Fh734), John Boling, and the heirs of Samuel Boling (367f), were on the 1810 tax list of Clarke County, Georgia. (1461)Henry Bolling (Boling) lived in Clarke County, Georgia, in 1820. (Census Records). (901) Henry Boling bought land 1827 in Clark County, Georgia. (900) Henry Bolling (Boling) lived in Clarke County, Georgia, in 1830 (Census Records). (901)

Death

Henry Boling had a will dated 1842, probated 1843 in Sumter County, Alabama. (900) Henry Bolling (Boling) was in Sumter County, Alabama in 1840 and died 1843 in Livingston, Sumter County, Alabama. (901) Samuel H. who was born about 1806 who married Elizabeth ----- is in Henry's will but he is not a son. (900) This Samuel H. was probably his nephur 623c, son of his brother Samuel Fh623. (7) My father Henry Wallace Rogers was supposedly named for his "rich cousin Henry" of Sumter County, Alabama. (900) 

7  367. John 1741-1811/m<1762 Ursula Bell--His father was William #905



A descendant kit 36240 tested into DNA 7

*a
William 1765-c1797/m1788 Phoebe Hawkins--See Family Group #774


*a
Elizabeth Jean or Jane Elizabeth 1762-dc1855/m1792 Rev. Miller Bledsoe (1761-1841)


*a
John b1764/69 or bc1773-d>1818/m1791 Susannah "Suckey" Bell bc1777--See Family Group 



#394


*a
Samuel b1764/69/70-1806/m1797 Susannah Brewer--See Family Group #623


*a
Johnathan 1767-1819/m1990 Susanah "Susan" Wood b1766--See Family Group #4475


*a
Emily "Milly" 1770-1860/1/h m1796 Thomas Price 2/h m1800 John D. Harris Sr.




See http://www.harrishomestead.com/mc/page.do?sitePageId=51856&orgId=hh


*a
Henry 1776-1843/m>1806 Susannah Brewer (widow of brother Samuel)--See Family Group #252



A descendant kit 36240 tested into DNA 7

*a
Thornberry 1777-1837/1/w m1798 Lucy Ann Rainey,2/w m1828 Mrs. Wright--See Family 



Group #737


*a
Susannah "Sucky" b1779-d1839/m1797 Thomas Brittain d1810


*
Ann “Nancy” bc1782-d>1830/m1797/87 George Young Farrar (not Farmer)


*
Children per source #279


a
Children per source #1442

7  
Fh367 
John Bolling was born 1741/45. (198)(653) John Bowling was the son William and Ann Bowling of Orange County, Virginia. (279) I believe that John Bolling's parents were William and Ann (----) Bolling (Fh905). (818) Orange County, Virginia court on Friday, 28 May 1773 granted John Bowling (Fh367), the eldest son and heir, administration of the Estate of William Bowling (Fh905), per Order Book 8, page 256.  He is given 30 lbs.  10 shillings.  (279) Orange County Virginia court on Friday, 28 May 1773, named John Bowling, the eldest son and heir, administration of the Estate of William Bowling, per order book 8, page 256. He is given 30 lbs. 10 shillings. In the year 1782 in Orange County, Virginia the two Bowling households found in official records were that of John Bowling and that of his mother, Ann Bowling in whose home his brother and sister (Thornberry and Sarah) resided. John Bolling in Orange County Virginia, court 1792 (Minute Book 2) appeared that he was heir at law to William Bolling, his brother, who died in 1778. (1725) John Bolling/Bowling (Fh367,905a,7) was born 1736. (1442)

Marriage and Children

John Bolling married Ursula Bell Wisdom. (198)(653) John Bolling married Ursula Bell the daughter of Roger Bell.  Roger Bell's will proved in Orange County, Virginia, in 1774 named a daughter Ursula Bowling. (818) Ursula's father Roger Bell lived and died in Orange Co., VA. (1442) Ursula Bell Wisdom Boling had two marriages 1) Francis Wisdom, 2) John Boling, Sr. (Fh367,905a,7). (1725) Ursula Bell was the daughter of Roger Bell. Roger Bell's will proved in Orange County, Virginia in 1774 named a daughter Ursula Bowling. John Bowling married (about 1760) Mrs. Ursula Bell (Wisdom), who was the mother of two daughters, Nancy/Lucy and Frankie Wisdom, who were under the guardianship of grandfather, Roger Bell, in his will. (1725) Per Orange County, Virginia Order Book 6, a court held 2 Sept 1762 ordered that the sheriff summon John Bolling and Ursula, his wife, to appear at the next court to be guardian the children of the said Ursula by her former husband. (1725) Another source stated that Mar 1763, Roger Bell was appointed guardian of Lucy and Frances Wisdom, orphans of Francis Wisdom. Husband Francis Wisdom died by 1758-60, and Ursula married John Boling by 1760-61, first child b. 1762. Based on data in Orange County, Virginia records, children of John and Ursula (Bell) Bolling were 

William, 

John/Jona Jr., 

Samuel, 

Charles and 

Ann. 

See History of Oglethorpe Co, Georgia for names of children of Ursula and John Boling, Sr. John Boling Sr. Ursula Bell (Wisdom) Boling. (1725) Ursual also had a brother Roger Bell mentioned in Orange County, Virginia, court records. (944) John Bowling married Mrs.  Ursula (Bell) Wisdon who was the mother of two daughters, Nancy and Frankie Wisdom.  (279) Per Orange County, Virginia, Order Book 6, page 675, a court held 2 Sept 1762 ordered that the sheriff summon John Bolling and Ursula, his wife, to appear at the next court to be guardian to the children of the said Ursula, by her former husband. (818)(944) John Bolling/Bowling (Fh367,905a,7), Revolutionary War Patriot,  married Ursula Bell. See family Group for children. (1442)  John Boling (Fh367) married Mrs. Ursula (Bell) Wisdom by 1760-61. Her prior husband Francis Wisdom died by 1758-60. John and Ursula Boling's  first child was born 1762. Based on data in Orange County, Virginia records, children of John and Ursula (Bell) Bolling were 

a. William. (Fh774) (1414)(1725)(818)

b. John/Jona Jr. (Fh394) (1414)(1725)(818) John Bolling Sr.  had a son John Bolling Jr.  (Fh394,367a).  (480)

c. Samuel. (Fh623)(1414)(1725)(818)

d. Charles. (1414)(1725)(818)  

e. Ann. (1414)(1725)(818) Daughter Nancy married George Y. Farrar in Oglethorpe Co., GA on 7 Apr 1798 (county marriage record).  I haven't ever seen her referred to as Ann by any descendants, always Nancy.  But Nancy was usually a nickname for Ann. The Published marriages of Oglethorpe Co., GA was wrong about Nancy Bowling marrying George Farmer.  There is a George Farmer there, but he married somebody else.  The original marriage record in Oglethorpe said that Nancy Bowling married George Farrar -- he was George Young Farrar. (1442)

A Mourning and Joseph appeared on a tax list one year with John in Orange County, Virginia, but were not counted as 2 people in the number of tithables that year.  Some researchers thought they were children.  Glen Garrison (Source 818) and I speculated that they were servants or slaves, but we just don't know.  (1442)

See "History of Oglethorpe County, Georgia" for names of children of Ursula and John Boling, Sr. (1414) Per Orange County, Virginia Order Book 6, a court held 2 Sept 1762 ordered that the sheriff summon John Bolling and Ursula, his wife, to appear at the next court to be guardian to the children of the said Ursula by her former husband. Another source stated that March 1763, Roger Bell was appointed guardian of Lucy and Frances Wisdom, orphans of Francis Wisdom. (1414) He might have had a daughter Jean "Jane" Elizabeth Bowling who married Miller Bledsoe (1761-1841).  Tradition says she was the daughter of a Dr. Bolling from Fredericksburg, Orange County, Virginia, who moved to Georgia right after the Revolution.  She died about 1862 in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. (951)

Movement

John Bowling was ordered to do road work, Orange County, Virginia, 26 June 1765.(  ) John Boling in 1782 court of Orange County, Virginia (Minute Book 2) had adjusting claims for property (225 lbs. of beef) impressed into the public service. (818)    In the year 1782 in Orange County, Virginia, the two Bowling households found in official records were that of John Bowling and that of his mother, Ann Bowling in whose home his brother and sister (Thornberry and Sarah) resided.  (279) John Bolling in Orange County, Virginia, court 1792 (Minute Book 2) appeared that he was heir-at-law to William Bolling, his brother, who died in 1778.  (818) All the Bowlings left in Orange County, Virginia, at that time were members of John Bowling's family since his only living brother, Thornberry, was a bachelor.  The task of tracing John Bowling's descendants was tedious because of the lack of Bible records, and traditions, the sale of property, removal to Georgia and dying intestate at an unknown date in Georgia. (279)  John Boling of Orange County, Virginia and Ursula, his wife, sold 25 March 1784 (Deed Book 18, page 267), 100 acres to Thornberry Boling, of same county, land on branches of the North Fork of Pamunky River, adjacent to other land owned by John Boling. (818) John Boling of Orange County, Virginia and Ursula, his wife, sold 1784 (deed book 18) 100 acres to Thornberry Boling, of same county, land on branches of the North Fork of Pamunky River, adjacent to other land owned by John Boling. John Bowling seems to have sold to his brother Thornberry their mother's dower right of his father's estate in 1784 (Deed Book 18, page 267-268 and Minute Book 2, page 262). (1725) Orange County, Virginia Deed Book 18, p. 267, John Boling of Orange County, Virginia and Ursula, his wife, to Thornberry Boling (905e), same County, for L50, current money of Virginia 100 acres on branches of North Fork of Pamunky River, adj. Millon Patent, Uriah Carton's new survey, and John Boling  (Fh367,905a). No witnesses. Proved: 27 Mar 1784. (1725) This 25 March 1784 indenture was later delivered to John Bowling, Jr. February 1796. (944) Per Minute Book 3, page 223, Orange County, Virginia, there was a deed from John Bowling to James Perry.  Proved by oaths of Henry Tandy, John Morton, Thomas Bell, John Wright, Jr. and ordered to be recorded in court held 27 April 1794. (944)  Per Deed Book 20, page 292, 4 January 1794, Orange County, Virginia, John Bowling and Ussilar (sic) his wife of Orange and James Perry of Spotsylvania in consideration of 135 lbs, 200 acres in Orange County described, in part, as beginning at a poplar, 2 white oaks and a sassafras a corner to Thornberry Bowling and adjoining Farton,...corner to Aaron Bledsoe...near Capt. Jurndon's Mill (Herndon??) corner to Aaron Bledsoe and Thornberry Bowling. (944) John Bowling seems to have sold to his brother Thornberry their mother's dower right of his father's estate in 1784 (Deed Book 18, page 267-268 and Minute Book 2, page 262).  (279)  John Boling and Ursula, his wife, of Orange County, Virginia (Deed Book 20) sold land in that county in 1794.  Land cornered Thornberry Bowling's land. (818) John Boling and Ursula, his wife, of Orange County, Virginia (Deed Book 20) sold land in that county in 1794. Land cornered Thornberry Bowling's land. John and Ursula Bowling resided on the land he inherited from his father, William Bowling, until many of their children were grown and some away from home. Today there is no traditions as to the reason for John Bowling's decision to sell the land owned by the family in Orange County, Virginia for more than forty years and to move to Georgia. (1725) The following abstract from Deed Book 20, page 292, proves the sale. "Jan 4, 1794 John Boling and Ursula, his wife sold to James Perry 200 hundred acres". It seems that not only John and Ursula Bowling with many of their own children but several neighbors went to Oglethorpe County, Georgia. The Bowling families reached Georgia sometime in 1795, but John was on the tax list first in 1796. Of the Bowling family there were taxes found John in 1796, John in 1797, Henry in 1797, and Samuel in 1797, John in 1798 and Samuel in 1798, John in 1799 and Thornberry in 1799. Also in 1799 the following were in Capt. John Evan's district, John, Henry and Samuel. This verifies that there were two John Bowlings in Oglethorpe County, Georgia in 1799 (John Sr. and John Jr). (1725) John and Ursula Bowling resided on the land he inherited from his father, William Bowling, until many of their children were grown and some away from home.  Today there is no traditions as to the reason for John Bowling's decision to sell the land owned by the family in Orange County, Virginia for more that forty years and to move to Georgia.  The following abstract from Deed Book 20, page 292, proves the sale.  "Jan 4, 1794 John Boling and Ursula, his wife sold to James Perry 200 hundred acres." (279)  It seems that not only John and Ursula Bowling with many of their own children but several neighbors went to Oglethorpe County, Georgia. The Bowling families reached Georgia sometime in 1795 but John was on the tax list first in 1796.  Of the Bowling family there were taxes found John in 1796, John in 1797, Henry in 1797, and Samuel in 1797, John in 1798 and Samuel in 1798, John in 1799 and Thornberry in 1799. Also in 1799 the following were in Capt. John Evan's district, John, Henry and Samuel.  This verifies there were two John Bowlings in Oglethorpe County, Georgia in 1799 (John Sr. and John Jr.). (279)  DAR lineage of Mrs. F.W. Guild of Winfield, Kansas has Revolutionary war patriot John Bowling of Orange County, Virginia, died in Georgia after his 1800 tax list was recorded. (279) A poll taken in Henry County, Virginia, for Thomas Cooper, 9 Apr 1787 shows James Boldin (Fh270), James Edwards, William Bolling (830f), John Bolling (Fh415 or Fh418), Thomas Edwards and Augustine Thomas (Augustine Thomas was distantly related to Ursula Bell who married John Bolling (Fh367)).  (1414)  Henry Boling (367h,Fh252) of Oglethorpe County, Georgia and Thomas Landrum of Oglethorpe County for $684.00 paid by Landrum, Land. Original grant to Randolph Givons in 1785, Conveyed land to Henry Boling in 1799. s/ Henry Bolling, Witness: John Bowling (Fh367, or son 367c), A. Hoag, Peachy Bledsoe. (1414)(1500) They moved to Oglethorp County, Georgia after 4th   Jan. 1794. (1442) Thomas Brittain (son-in-law) paid tax for John 1807, 1808, 1809. In 1810 John Paid the tax himself.(1442)

Military

John Bolling performed Patriotic Service during the Revolutionary War in Virginia. (198)(653) John Bolling, Orange County, Virginia, son of William Bolling, early St. Thomas Parish, Orange County, Planter. John Bolling, a Public Servant, adjusting claims for property in Orange County Supplied Meat for the Army 7-3-1781 at 2-1/2 cents a Lb. He headed a family of 12 in 1782-1790 Census. "The said John Bolling of Orange County, Virginia assisted in establishing American Independence, while acting in the capacity of Public Servant (Patriot), adjusting claims for Property in the County. Supplied meat for Army 7-3-1781, Helped with early planting in the County. Public Service Claims Ct. Bklet, p 2, Commissioner's Book IV, p. 180 John Boling/Bolling/Bowling is a DAR patriot. He had three brothers who fought in the Rev War from Orange Co, Virginia, all of whom were wounded and later died. He had two or three sons who were also in the Rev War, two of whom left Georgia and went to Ohio. (Fairfield County, Ohio, Charles Bowling Fh1563 (1763-1849) and William Bowling Fh774)  (1725) DAR Lineage of Mrs. F. W. Guild of Winfield Kansas has Revolutionary war patriot John Bowling of Orange County, Virginia, died in Georgia after his 1800 tax list was recorded." (1725) Some DAR papers disagree with what our research has produced in some instances. They refer to John Bowling's date of death as having been in Albemarle County, Virginia or probably Orange County, Virginia, which, in truth, was the date that he and his wife Ursula, sold their property in Orange County, Virginia and moved to Georgia to join their children, who had already moved there. (1725)

Death

John Bolling died 1794. (198)(653) Ursula died in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. (1725) John, Sr. died after 1800 in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. (1725) John Bolling/Bowling died Dec. 1811 Clarke County, Georgia. (1442) John Bolling, Sr. (Fh367), was born about 1735 and died in Clarke County, Georgia after 31 Dec 1811.  He was shown in an account return for the estate of Thomas Brittain, his son-in-law, on that date. (1442) 
7  377.
John P. bc1792-d>1850/m1816 1/w Cisley Tate (bc1797-d>1880)--His father was William #774 



a
2/w m<1850 Lucy ------



a
William J. H. bc1821



a
Emily/Emila S. bc1828-d>1880 (single with Cisley, her mother, in 1880 Census) 



a
Marian bc1831 (male)


a
Mildred bc1833



a
Phoeba bc1836



a
Peyton bc1839



a
Ellen P. bc1842-d>1880 (single with Cisley, her mother, in 1880 Census)

a
In 1850 Census Montgomery County, TN per Source #1442. Also in the Census was probably John's mother Phoebe H. age 81, i.e. bc1769.

7
Fh377
John P. Bowling was born about 1792 in Virginia, from 1850 Census data. (986) John Bowling's parents were probably William and Phoebe Bowling (Fh774). John Bowling married Cisley Tate, 1816 in Louisa County, Virginia.  Witnesses were Ralph S. Dickenson and Henry Bowlin. Cisley Tate's father was William Tate. William and Phoebe Bowling owned land next to William Tate, father of Cisley.  There was an indenture, Louisa County, Virginia, Deed Book N, October 1, 1816, "William Bowling and Phoebe, his wife, John P. Bowling and Cisley, his wife, grant, bargain and sell to John Quarles land as follows:  South side of North Anna River corner to William Tate...to Tate's corner on Tomahawk Branch to William and James Tate...to John McGehee...in William Mansfield's line to tree on Christopher's Run...to John Nelson's corner South side of North Anna River."  The two families and perhaps the Henry Bowlin who was witness to John and Cisley Tate's marriage may have moved away from Virginia after the sale of this property.  The P. middlename for John might be Poindexter as that was probably the maiden name of his mother Phoebe.  The Poindexters were prominent family in Louisa County, Virginia, just south of the North Fork of the Pamunkey River, where the Bollings lived in Orange County, Virginia. (944)  John P. Bowling was age 58 (bc1792) in the 1850 Census of Tennessee with wife Lucy age 53.  Both were born in Virginia.  Also in the household were William J. H. age 29, Emila S. age 22, Marian age 19, Mildred age 17, Phoeba age 14, Peyton age 11, Ellen age 8, Phoeba H. age 81. (986) In 1850 census, District 1-4, Montgomery County, Tennessee, there is a John P. Bowling (Fh377, 774b) listed as being a 58 year old male farmer. (this would make him born around 1792).  It states he was born in Virginia.  The value of his real estate that he owns is $2500.  He is married to Lucy who is 53 years old and born in Virginia.  The others listed in the household are:
William J.H. 
29 male
Emila S 

27 female
Navina? 

19 female
Mildred 

17 female
From William to Mildred all were born in Kentucky.
From Phoebe to the Ellen all were born in Tennessee.
Phoebe 

14 Female
Peyton 

11 male
Ellen 

8 female
Phoebe H 
81 Female
There is a column on this one that states color: White, black or mulatto.  John, Lucy, William, Emila,
Navina, Mildred, and Phoebe H all have a check next to their name in this column.  I am not sure what that
means. (1442) Widow Cisley Bowling and two of her daughters are in the 1880 Census of Montgomery County, Tennessee: 

	
	Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 Cisley BOWLING 

 Self 

 W 

 Female 

 W 

 83 

 VA 

 Keeping House 

 VA 

 VA 

 Emily BOWLING 

 Dau 

 S 

 Female 

 W 

 52 

 KY 

 Assistant House Keeper 

 VA 

 VA 

 E. P. BOWLING 

 Dau 

  

 Female 

 W 

 38 

 TN 

 At Home 

 VA 

 VA 

 Thomas BOWLING 

 Other 

 M 

 Male 

 B 

 30 

 TN 

 Farm Laborer 

 TN 

 TN 

 Susan BOWLING 

 Wife 

 M 

 Female 

 B 

 26 

 TN 

 Servant 

 TN 

 TN 

 Peter BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 B 

 8 

 TN 

 At Home 

 TN 

 TN 

 Montgomery BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 B 

 4 

 TN 

  

 TN 

 TN 

 W. T. BOWLING 

 Son 

 S 

 Male 

 B 

 2 

 TN 

  

 TN 

 TN 

 Joshua PUGH 

 Other 

 M 

 Male 

 B 

 30 

 TN 

 Farm Laborer 

 TN 

 TN 

 Mary PUGH 

 Other 

 M 

 Female 

 B 

 32 

 TN 

 Servant 

 TN 

 TN 

 Cora PUGH 

 Other 

 S 

 Female 

 B 

 12 

 TN 

 Servant 

 TN 

 TN 

 Julia PUGH 

 Other 

 S 

 Female 

 B 

 8 

 TN 

 At Home 

 TN 

 TN 

 Lilian PUGH 

 Other 

 S 

 Female 

 B 

 2 

 TN 

  

 TN 

 TN 

 Alice WINSTON 

 Other 

  

 Female 

 B 

 20 

 TN 

 Servant 

 TN 

 TN 



Source Information:
 

Census Place
District 1, Montgomery, Tennessee

 

Family History Library Film  

1255272
 

NA Film Number  

T9-1272

 

Page Number  

163C       




7  394. John b1764/69 or bc1773-d>1818/m1791 Susannah "Suckey" Bell bc1777--His father was John #367: 


Milly bc1805 VA/m1824 Benjamin M. Granade



Harriet ?
 bc1808-d>1850/m1827 Nathan Lipscomb (d<1850)
 

a
Alexander B. b<1809-1862/m1839 Elizabeth Kines 

a
John S. bc1812 GA-d>1880/1/w m1833 Anne W. Nance, 2/h m>1849 Martha ------- (bc1826-


d>1880)


a
Mary “Polly” bc1813 GA/m1833 Richard Carlton


a
Susannah "Susan" 1817 GA-d<1873/m1831 Edward Carlton (1807-1836)


a
Elizabeth bc1820-d<1873/m>1843 Frederick Barrett (1821-1874)


a
Children per Source #1442

7
Fh394,367c
John Bowling and Thornberry Bowling were ordered to do road work, Orange County, Virginia, 26 October 1790.(  ) John Bolling Jr. married 1791 Susannah Bell, Orange County, Virginia. (269)  Marriage Notes for SUSANNAH BELL and JOHN BOLING (Fh394): Orange County, Virginia, Marriage Book 1722-1850, page 17. (1927) John Boling Jr. married 1791 Susannah Bell, Orange County, Virginia.  Her father was Thomas Bell.  Bondsman was William Boling. (563) John Boling, Jr. and Susannah Bell, Spinster, married April 19, 1791.  William Boling was Bondsman.  Susannah's father Thomas Bell signed permission.  (Orange County, Virginia, Marriage Book 1, page 28).  (944) John Bolling Jr. was born about 1773. He was of Charlotte, Virginia.  His father was John Bolling (Fh367).  John Bolling Jr.  married Susannah Bell the daughter of Thomas and Sallie (Brockman) Bell of Orange County, Virginia. (480) Based on data in Orange County, Virginia, records I believe John Bolling was a son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bolling.  John Bolling had a marriage bond issued to marry Susannah Bell "spinster" in 1791, Bondsmans was William Bolling.  I believe John/Jona was listed in a 1785 tax list as a son age 16-21 in his father's household.  He was listed separately from his father in the tax lists of 1790 and 1793.  (818)  In Minute Book 3, page 358, Orange County, Virginia, there is a deed from Thornberry Bowling to John Bowling acknowledged by said Thornberry and ordered to be recorded at the court held 22 Feb 1796.  In Deed Book 21, page 41, of Orange County, Virginia, there is an indenture made 22 Feb 1796 between Thornberry Bowling and John Bowling, both of Orange County, 100 acres in Orange County on the branches of a fork of Pamunkey river. (944) John Boling of the county of Culpeper, Virginia, in 1799 deeded to George Quisenberry, land in Orange County, Virginia, described, in part, as corner of Roger Bell on the North Fork of the North Anna River...James Perry's line. (Orange County Deed Book 21, page 466, 24 June 1799).  (944)  I believe he was living in Culpeper County, Virginia, with wife Surfey?  (Susana) in 1803.  (818) There is no record of children for John and Susanna Bowling.  (279)  John Boling, Jr.  married Susannah Bell and moved to Georgia.  Susannah Bell had brothers Roger Bell and Brockman Bell remaining in Orange County, Virginia.  Brockman Bell was named for their mother's family.  (279) Henry Boling (367h,Fh252) of Oglethorpe County, Georgia and Thomas Landrum of Oglethorpe County for $684.00 paid by Landrum, Land. Original grant to Randolph Givons in 1785, Conveyed land to Henry Boling in 1799. s/ Henry Bolling, Witness: John Bowling (Fh367, or son 367c), A. Hoag, Peachy Bledsoe. (1414)(1500) 1803 Will of Thomas Bell, Orange County, Virginia, give to my daughter Sucky Bowling, her husband, John Bowling. Will Book 4, pages 334-336. (1662) Page 477 Oglethorpe Co. Ga. Deed Book E. 1806-1809: Henry Boling (367h,Fh252,7) of Clark County, Georgia to John Boling (Probably Fh394,367c,7) of Oglethorpe Co. Ga. for $1,000 on Big Creek waters in Oglethorpe Co. Beginning on John Boolling's line, N56W 178 poles to cor. , S34W24 poles to cor., S31 1/2E 380 poles to hornbeam cor. on Big Creek, up meanders of creek to cor., N47W90 poles to cor. on branch, up branch to beg., 197 acres, is part of survey granted to William George by Gov. John Houston, 21 Sept. 1784, in fee simple.  [signed] H. Boling.  Witnessed:  George Y. Farrow, Moses Bledsoe, Oglethorpe Co.:  proved by George Y. Farrow & Moses Bledsoe, 10, Feb. 1807, William Ford, J.P. Recorded 24th July 1809. (1414) 1818 Will of Sarah Bell, Orange County, Virginia, give to my daughter Sucky Bolling, the wife of John Bolling of Georgia..(then to) my granddaughter, Polly Bolling, daughter of Suckey Bolling.. Will Book 5, pages 266-267. (1662) John Bolling Jr. married Susanna Bell and lived on Big Creek in Georgia and had two (2) sons: Alexander B. Bolling & John S. Bolling. Also daughters Mary “Polly” born about 1813, Susannah born about 1817 and Elizabeth born about 1820. I know that Mary "Polly" was a daughter of John Bolling, Jr. and Susannah Bell, because she was named in her grandmother's will (Sarah Brockman Bell, widow of Thomas Bell, who were parents of Susannah who married John Bolling, Jr.).  The other girls you have listed have documentation which indicates they are children of this couple. (1442) Son John S. Bowling is on the 1880 Census:

	Household Record

	 1880 United States Census 


	 

	
	Search results |  Download 

	Previous Household   

	Next Household 



	




 
Household:
 Name 
Relation
Marital Status
Gender
Race
Age
Birthplace
Occupation
Father's Birthplace
Mother's Birthplace
 John S. BOWLING 
 Self 
 M 
 Male 
 W 
 68 
 GA 
 Farming 
 VA 
 VA 

 Martha BOWLING 
 Wife 
 M 
 Female 
 W 
 54 
 GA 
 Keeping House 
 NY 
 GA 

 Mary BOWLING 
 Dau 
 S 
 Female 
 W 
 21 
 GA 
 Keeping House 
 GA 
 GA 

 Jack BOWLING 
 Son 
 S 
 Male 
 W 
 18 
 GA 
 Farming 
 GA 
 GA 



Source Information:
 
Census Place
Alexandria, Calhoun, Alabama

 
Family History Library Film  
1254004
 
NA Film Number  
T9-0004

 
Page Number  
562A
7 426. John 1780-1863/m<1800 1/w ----- ----- (born 1775-1784)



m1815 2/w Sarah Ann Raburn (1773-1842)--His father was Samuel #610



Samuel Jackson 1816-1891/m1838 Mary Ann Ewing (1818-1860)

7
FH426   John Bolling was born in Henry County, Virginia in 1778 to Samuel Bolling (b. September 27, 1758 Halifax County, Virginia; d. August 14, 1808 in District 96, Laurens, South Carolina) and Abigail Choice Bolling (b. 1759 Halifax County, Virginia; d. July 12, 1832 in District 96, South Carolina). The parents of Abigail Choice were Tully and Mary Choice. Samuel and Amelia married on November 2, 1777 in Martinsville, Henry County, Virginia. 

 John Boling was in the 1800 Census of Laurens County, South Carolina with males 00100 and females 00100. (Heritage Quest)

1800 Census for both male and female:

Under 10

10-15

16-25 (i.e. both born 1775-1784)

26-44

45 and over

In 1815 John Bolling married Sarah Ann Raburn in South Carolina. John and Sarah had one son, Samuel Jackson Bolling, born Feb. 29, 1816 in Laurens County, South Carolina. John, Sarah, and their little son moved to Greenville, Butler County, Alabama in early 1819 along with his sister Elizabeth and her husband James Dunklin and several other families. One of Greenville, Butler County, Alabama's early settlers was John Bolling. In Greenville, John was the proprietor of the Bolling Hotel, which was a very popular hotel south of the courthouse. A note in the Commissioners Records of Butler County, 1857 mentioned the Bolling Hotel: "The commissioners rented a large room in John Bolling's tavern ($15.00 also paid for wood, candles, water and other accommodations for five days for prisoners and guard for the spring term of court.)" [source: the Sept. 1988 issue of the quarterly publication of the Butler County Historical Society, vol. 24, no. 3, pg. 14] John Bolling died in 1863 and is buried in Pioneer Cemetery in Greenville, Alabama next to his wife Sarah, who died in 1842. In 1838 John and Sarah's son Samuel Jackson Bolling married Mary Ann Ewing (b. about 1818 to Jonathan Ewing and Alice Thompson) in Butler County, Alabama. (1723) See his Family Group Sheet

7  4475. Jonathan 1767-1819/m1790 Susanah "Susan" Woods 1766-d>1840--His father was John #367



Peggy bc1791/m1811 Daniel Gibson and/or ----- Jackson


    b  d
John R. b1792 d GA



Green


*ab  d
Rhoda 1794-1860/m1810 Benjamin J. McCall (1787-1852)


*
Female b1794


      cd
Elizabeth "Betsey" b1797/m1813 John B. Richardson b1791


      c
Sally b<1798/m1819 Chistopher Radley


*ab  d
William Wood 1799-1863/m1820 Martha Combs 1804->1886--See Family Group #921


    b  d
Polly M. b1803 


*  b  de
George Washington 1807-d>1850/m1829 Ann “Eliza” Floyd b1808-d>1850


*  b
James Madison 1811-1863/m 1831Elizabeth Edsall Baumgartner 1816-1860


    b
Susannah b1813


*
Children per Source #1726 and #885


a
Children per Source #803


b
Children per Source #1927


c
Both marriages were in Hardin County, Kentucky so might be in Family String K.


d
In the 1810 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky with males 21110-females 11110. 


e
In the 1850 Census of Hart County, KY.

7
Fh4475,367e
Jonathan Bolling was born 1767 in Albemarle County, Virginia. (239)(803)(810)(1155)(1343) Jonathon Bowling was born 1767 in Albemarle County, Virginia. (1726) Jonathan Wood Bowling was born in Albemarle County, Virginia. (806) Johnathan Bowling was born May 22, 1767 in Orange County, Virginia (his Family Bible record) the son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bowling. (279) Jonathan Bolling (Fh4475) was born 22 May 1767. (1442) 

Marriage and Children

Jonathan Bolling married Susannah Wood. (1442)  Jonathan Bolling married Susan Wood. (239)(810)(1155)  Jonathan Bowling married 1790 Susannah Wood in Albemarle County. Virginia. (1213) Jonathan Bolling married Susan Wood the daughter of John and Eleanor (Isreal) Wood. Albemarle pp 349-50. (168) Jonathan Bolling married Susan Wood the daughter of John and Eleanor (Isreal) Wood.  They moved to Hardin County, Kentucky about 1804.  They had at least two children. (803) Jonathan Wood Bowling married Susan -----. (806) Johnathan Bowling was in Albemarle County, Virginia, put up fifty pounds on a marriage bond in Albemarle County, to marry Susannah Wood, the daughter of John and Elnor (Israel) Wood.  The date of the marriage license was Nov. 17, 1790.  They were married November 20, 1790.  He was then 24 years old. (279) Jonathon Bowling married 17 Nov 1790, Susannah Woods. (1726) Their children were:    

a.
William Wood Bowling (803) Son William Wood Bowling (Fh921) was born in 1799. (806) They had a son William Wood Bowling (Fh921).  (239)(810)(1155) William Wood Bowling, born 02/19/1799, Albemarle County, Virginia; died 06/22/1863, Rip Rio, Hardin/Hart County, Kentucky. (1927)

b
Rhoda who was born about 1792 in Albermarle County, Virginia, and who married 1810 Benjamin J.  Mc Caul in Hardin County, Kentucky. (803) Rhoda Boling, daughter of Jonathan Boling had a marriage license issued December 17, 1810, to marry Benjamin McCall, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Surety was John Boling. The marriage was December 20, 1810. Marriage Book A pages 8 and 37. (1682) Rhoder Bolin, married December 20, 1810 Benjamin McCall, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1684) Rhoda Boling (4475d) to Benjamin McCall, 17 Dec 1810, Bond.  Marriage return dated 20 Dec 1810.  Consent of Jonathan Boling, the father of the bride. Hardin County, Kentucky, marriage records. (1864) Rhoda Bowling, born 01/15/1794, Albemarle County, Virginia; died 1860, Kentucky. (1927)
c
 Peggy Boling, daughter of Jonathan Boling had a marriage license issued December 17, 1810, to marry Daniel Gibson, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Surety was John Boling. The marriage was January 3, 1811. T. Whitman performed the service but in the return stated Daniel Gibson and Peggy McDonald (sic). (1682) Peggy Boling (4475a) to Daniel Gibson, bond dated 17 Dec 1810, marriage return dated 3 Jan 1811.  A note of consent by the father of the bride.  The "father" didn't signed his name, but the handwriting of the consent note was identical to a note signed by Jonathan Boling for his daughter Rhoda to marry Benjamin McCall on the same date. Hardin County, Kentucky, marriage records. (1864) 
d
Betsy Bolin, with a father Jonathan, married 1813 John Richardson, in Hardin County, Kentucky, sworn by John Boling. (1680) Betsy Boling, daughter of Jonathan Boling had a marriage license issued January 27, 1813, to marry John Richardson, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Surety was John Boling. The marriage was Feb 11, 1813. Marriage Book A, pages 10 and 44. (1682) Betsey Boling, married February 11, 1813 John Richardson, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1684) Betsy Boling (4475f) to John Richardson, bond dated 27 Jan 1813.  Marriage return dated 11 Feb 1813.  Consent by Jonathan Boling. Hardin County, Kentucky, marriage records. (1864) Elizabeth "Betsy" Bowling, born 03/30/1797, Albemarle County, Virginia. (1927) Betsy Boling, father John, married John Richardson, January 27, 1813, Hardin County, Kentucky. (2009)
e
Sally Bowlin, married 1819 Christopher Radley, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1680)(1682) Sally Bowlin, married October 6, 1818 Christopher Radley, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1684) Sally Bowlin to Christopher Radley 6 Oct 1819. Hardin County, Kentucky, marriage records. (1864) Sally makes oath that she is of legal age.  Ichabod Radley, father of the groom consents.  Witnesses were Betsy Radley and Sarah Robinson.  Bondsman was Wesley Purcell. I question whether Sally Bowlin is Jonathan and Susannah's daughter.  None of the parties involved sound like any of Jonathan Boling/Bowling's family.   We know that Jonathan and Susannah's family were in Hart Co. before 1819, as his estate administration started there in  1819 and that was the year Hart Co. was created out of Hardin (and other) counties.  Sally Bowlin must be a child of the other Bolling family who must have lived in the part of Hardin Co. that stayed Hardin Co. after Hart was cut off. (1442) Sally Bowling. (1927) Sally Bowlin married Christopher Radley, October 6, 1819, Hardin County, Kentucky. (2009)
f
John. I believe you do need to have a son named John for Jonathan Fh4475 and wife Susannah Wood.  Charlene Ebeling reported that he was listed as a son of Jonathan in "Kentucky Kinfolks, Genealogy, from The Louisville Herald-Post" 1930's, Vol. 15 #3.  This source gave as his birth date 30 Jan 1792, and gave all the birth dates of Jonathan's other children.  (1442) Jonathan Bolling and Susannah Wood had sons Green R. Bolling & John Bolling. (1442) John R. Boling, Jr., born 01/30/1792, Albemarle County, Virginia, was a residence, 1819, Georgia with daughter Polly. He died in Georgia. (1927)

g
Green R. (1442)
h
James Madison. Via ancestry.com messages, I received a notice from Martha Holland, Waco Texas. (date July 2009) She says she has come to the conclusion that Edward Bowling (Fh220) ["pioneer of KY"] was NOT the father of James Madison Bowling, her 3rd great-grandfather.  She got that information from the papers of Clayton Rock in Frankfort, KY.  She doesn't believe Clayton Rock was correct, and we in Group 7 researchers didn't think he was either. We believe that James Madison Bowling was the son of Jonathan Bowling/Bolling and Susannah Wood. Martha now agrees with us. (1442)
Movement

1784

Johnathan Bowling was named as a male tithable on John Bowling's tax list for the first time in 1784.  Details of these early days are not known. (279)
1790

17 Nov 1790. Albemarle-VA. Jonathan Bowling m Susannah Wood. (son of John Bolling and Ursula Bell Wisdom, dau of Roger Bell, all of Orange-VA, per DAR National No. 543628. The paper was approved in 1968, and the documentation is ambiguous. The best proof is that Jonathan is a minor in the household of John Bowling in the personal property tax list of 1784 and 1785. One piece of evidence given on the DAR paper was Orange Co. VA Families by W. A. Brockman, which may have some additional proof of Jonathan's parentage. D-5 has some deeds for Jonathan Bolling/Bowling in Albemarle and Amherst-VA. John Bolling and Wood families taxed 1785 Albemarle-VA; but in the tax record examined on microfilm by Yvonne Porter (also Glen Garrison) for 1785, Jonathan was listed in John Bolling's Orange-VA house. (1927) 

1792


1792 Tax list for Orange County, Virginia (checked by Glen Garrison) 
John Boling

Fh367

2 tithable males, 

5 horses 
William Boling

Fh774,367a
1 tithable male, 

2 horses [son of John] 
Thornberry Boling
Fh737,367h
1 tithable male, 

1 horse [brother of John] 
Charles Boling 



1 tithable male, 1 horse [from Stafford Co., may be a cousin?] 
(1927)

27 Mar 1792. Orange-VA Minute Book 3, p116. At a court held 27 March 1792, John Bolling made it appear to the Court that he is heir-at-law to William Bolling, his brother, who enlisted as soldier in the 2nd VA Regt. in the month of February 7, 1777, in the company commanded by Capt. Dudley, and that William Bolling died in the month of July or August 1778 while in the service, which was proved by Peachy Bledsoe, who was a Sgt. in said Regiment. Ordered to be certified. [Peachy Bledsoe was brother to Miller Bledsoe; I believe their father was Moses Bledsoe who married a 1st Miss Peachy, dau of Col. Wm. Peachy and m2) Mary Miller d/o Col. William Miller.] 
(transmittal by Alice Broaddus, in letter file 7/93) (1927)

1793


1793. Tax list for Orange-VA. (checked by Glen Garrison) 
William Boling, 1 tithable male, 2 horses [son of John, Sr.] 
Thonby Boling 1 tithable male, 1 horse [brother of John, Sr.] 
John Boling, Senr. 2 tithable males, 3 horses 
Charles Boling 1 tithable male, 1 horse [from Stafford Co., VA, not son of John Sr.] 
John Boling, Jr. 1 tithable [son of John, Sr.] 
Ann Boling 1 black, 2 horses (1927)

1794
1794. Tax list for Orange-VA. ( checked by Glen Garrison) 
Thornbury Boling 1 tithable, 1 horse 
William Boling, 1 tithable male, 1 horse 
Charles Boling 1 tithable male, 2 horse 
John Boling (Jr.) 1 tithable [early in the year, John and Ursula sold their property and began the journey to GA] (1927)

04 Jan 1794. Orange-VA Deed Bk 20, p292. John Boling (Fh367) and Ursula, his wife, of Orange-VA to James Perry of Co. of Spottsylvania, for 135L Virginia money, 200ac corner to Thorneberry Bowling (can’t be Fh737,367h as he would be too young so much be 905d)) hand adj. Garton's corner to Aaron Bledsoe's line near Capt. Herndon's mill road thence continuing on adj. said Bledsoe's line to Thorneberry Bowling's line. S/ John (X) Boling; s/ Ursula (X) Boling. Wit: Thomas Bell, John Wright, Jr., John Morton, Henry Tandy, John Smith. Proved 22 Apr 1794. (transmittal by Alice Broaddus, in letter file 7/93) (1927)


1796
Mar 1796. Albemarle-VA Deed Bk 12, p65-66 & p.127-128. Jonathan Bol(ens/??) witnessed two deeds, one for George Berry and wife Sally of Albemarle-VA selling to John Field & one for Isaac Oaks & wife Lucy selling to George Berry. The land was on waters of Mechum's R. (Pounding Branch), near Samuel Wood, deceased; and Jesse Wood, Senr. was a witness to one of them. (Delores Rutherford correspondence in Berry files July, 1991) [This must be Jonathan Bolling son of John of Orange-VA, who in 1791 in Albemarle Co. married Susannah Wood. The Berry family and Isaac Oaks are from Orange-VA.] (1927) 

Johnathan Bowling was named as a male tithable on John Bowling's tax list for the first time in 1784.  Details of these early days are not known. (279)  Later he was in Albemarle County, Virginia, put up fifty pounds on a marriage bond in Albemarle County, to marry Susannah Wood, the daughter of John and Elnor (Israel) Wood.  The date of the marriage license was Nov. 17, 1790.  They were married November 20, 1790.  He was then 24 years old.  They resided in Albemarle County, Virginia until about 1804 when he settled up his affairs and moved to Barren County, Kentucky.  They reared a family there. Descendants of Jonathan evidently resided in the area of three Kentucky counties viz.  Barren, Hardin and Hart.  (279) A kinsman, the Rev. Edgar Wood, of Albemarle County, Virginia, compiled a list of families who moved from Albemarle County, Virginia, to Kentucky.  While he did not list dates he did name the counties to which they had moved when they went to Kentucky. The names on the list include Jonathan Bolling and wife, Susan Wood, to Barren County, Kentucky. (7) Jonathan Bolling  removed to Kentucky as early as 1804 to Hardin County, Kentucky, now Hart County, Kentucky. (239)(810)(1155) He is not on the tax records of Hardin County until 1807. He misses some years. Then he reappears every year 1811 through 1817. (1863) Jonathan Bowling moved to Hart County, Kentucky. (Hart-created 1819 from Hardin and Barren) (806) 

1810

Jon..a Bolin is in the 1810 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky with males 21110-females 11110. (HeritageQuest.com) Jonathan Bolin was in Hardin County, Kentucky, in 1810 on page 287 with 21110-11110-05.  In that same census on page 285 was Thomas Bolin (Fh730,268b,6M1). (9)(2) Jonathan Bolin was in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, in 1810 on page 287, line 7. (1504) I found the 1810 census for Elizabethtown, Hardin County, KY. It is listed as Jon (then it has a circle with two dots or dashes under them, could it be the abbreviation for Jonathon?) Bolin. All the info fits with the family. It has the following: 
2 free white males under 10 (probably George 
Washington and James Madison if born 1810 not 1811) 
1 free white male 10 thru 15 (probably William Wood) 
1 free white male 16 thru 25 (probably John) 
1 free white male 26 thru 44 (probably Jonathon himself) 
1 free white female under 10 (probably Polly M) 
1 free white female 10 thru 15 (probably Elizabeth) 
1 free white female 16 thru 25 (probably either Rhoda or Peggy, more than likely Rhoda since she is the one we defintely know of) 
1 free white female 26 thru 44 (probably Susannah herself) (1927)
Source 1504 Hardin County, Kentucky 1810 Census

http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/hardin/census/1810/

Head of Household

Males
Males
Males
Males
Males

Page #
Line #
Last Name
First Name
0-9
10to15
16-25
26-44
45+ 

285
25
Bolin (Fh730, 6M1)
Thos.

2
2
2
1
0

287
7
Bolin (Fh4475, 7?)
Jona.

2
1
1
1
0

291
14
Bowling (Fh323 6K)
Garrard

2
0
1
0
0

299
16
Bowling (Fh880 6K)
Wm.

1
0
0
1
0

299
6
Lincoln

Thomas

1
0
0
1
0







1-This would be Abraham Lincoln

1820

According to the 1820 census of Munfordville, Hart County, Kentucky: 
Susan Bowling had the following in her household: 
2 free white males of ten and under sixteen (probably was James Madison and George Washington) 
1 free white male of sixteen and under twenty six including heads of families (probably was William Wood) 
1 free white female of ten and under sixteen (probably was Polly M but this would be a close one on age for her) 
1 free white female forty five and upwards including heads of families (probably was Susannah herself) 
6 number of persons engaged in agriculture 
2 male slaved under fourteen 
1 male slave of fourteen and under twenty-six 
3 female slaves under fourteen 
2 female slaves of fourteen and under twenty-six 
1 female slave of forty-five and upwards 
14 all other persons except Indians not taxed (1927) 


1830
1830 CENSUS RECORD FOR HART COUNTY, KENTUCKY According to the 1830 census for Hart County, Kentucky: Susannah Bowling was listed as having two females in her house. One was between age 20 and 30 (probably Polly M.) and the other one was between age 60 and 70, I presume this was Susannah who would have been about 64. (1927)

1840

1840 CENSUS FOR HART COUNTY KY According to the 1840 census for Hart County, Susan Bowling was between age 70 and 80. This is Jonathon's widow. (1927)


Death 


Jonathan Bolling died Munfordville, Hart County, Kentucky. (1442) Jonathon Bowling died 1819 in Hart County, Kentucky. (1726) Jonathan and Susan Wood BOWLING, were of English extraction, and natives of Albemarle County, Virginia. The former was born May 22, 1767, and the latter November 10, 1877 (?).  They were married in Albemarle County, Va., moved to Kentucky as early as 1804, and located in Hardin County (now Hart). (806)(810)    

7 530. Robert 1778-1867/m1796 Rachel Tarrant--His father was Samuel #610


*
Terry Tarrant 1800-1874/m1826 Abigail Holloway or Jenny ----- Holloway


*
Elizabeth 1802-1881/m1819 John Townsend (1782-1857)


*
Nancy 1804->1874/Isaac Davenport


*
Jane Caroline 1810-1857/m1836 William Allison


*
Mary “Polly” Perritt 1807-1896/m1824 Lewis Hamilton Shumate


*
Abigail/Abbegail 1813-19055/Martin M. Arnold


*
Named in their father's 1874 estate settlement.  Caroline was deceased.

7 
Fh530  
Robert Bowling was born about 1773/74 in Henry County, Virginia, the son of Samuel Bowling and Abigail Choice.  He married 1796 Rachel Tarrent or Tarrant in South Carolina.  She was the daughter of Leonard and Mary (Hargroves) Tarrant.  They settled in Greenville County, South Carolina.  They had children: Mary, Abigail, Terry, Elizabeth, Nancy and Caroline.  Robert died 1867 in South Carolina. (7)  Robert Bolling and Rachel Tarrant had a daughter Abigail born 1813 in Greenville, South Carolina.  (814)  Son T. Tarrant Bolling and wife Abagail Hollaway in 1834 lived in Greenville, South Carolina. This son T. T. Bolling was in the 1850 Census of Chattooga, Georgia. (814) Robert (age 73) and Rachel (age 72) Bolling, both born in Virginia, were in the 1850 U.S. Census of Greenville County, South Carolina.  They may have had twin daughters, Amelia ("Millie") and Rachel born 1810 in South Carolina. (838)  In the 1820 Census of Greenville, South Carolina, there is Robert Boling with 1 male 26-45; 1 male over 45; 2 females under 10; 1 10-16; 1 16-26 and 1 26-45. (838)  In Greenville County, South Carolina, there are papers dated between 1867 and 1874 on the estate of Robert Bolling.  L. H. Shumate was administrator.  In June, 1874, he listed heirs at law of the deceased Robert Bolling as Mary Shumate, Abbegail Arnold, Elizabeth Townsend, the heirs of Caroline Allison (named), All above living in S.C.  Living out of state were T. T. Bolling and Nancy Davenport. (838)  Robert Bolling was born 6 March 1776 in Henry County, Virginia, to Samuel and Abigail (Choice) Bolling.  He married Rachel Tarrant, 25 December 1796 in Ninety-Six, South Carolina. (83) Robert Bolling (Fh530) was born before 1775 died 1867 Greenville County, South Carolina. He married 1795  Rachel Tarrant and  lived on the Little River. (1442)

7 610. Samuel c1743-1808/m<1771 Abigail "Abe" or "Abie" or "Abby" Choice (1759-1832)--His father was William #905. Another “supposed father”, William Fh830, may have never existed.


A descendant kit 31223 tested into DNA 7


Descendant kits 1592 and 1809 tested into DNA 7

b*
Robert 1778-1867/m1796 Rachel Tarrant--See Family Group #530


b*
Nancy 1779->1827/m<1791 1/h ----- Kellett, 2/h  m1791 James Sullivan  Jr., 3/h Henry Strange


b*
John 1780-1863/m1815 Sarah Anne Raburn--See Family Group #426


b*
Tully Choice 1781-1844/1/w Catherine Gaines and 2/w m1823 Widow Mrs. Mary Ann (Smythe) 



Mimms--See Family Group #738


b*
Elizabeth 1782-1821/m1800 James Dunklin


b*
Lucinda bc1789-1838/m1809 James Johnson (1789-1858)


  *
Samuel c1789-c1862/m1807 1/w Elizabeth Townsend, 2/w m1853 Mrs. Disdemiah 




(Cates) Henry--See Group #611


b*
Thornberry D. 1794-1822-never married-will probated 1827


b*
Mary "Polly" 1794-1870/m1812 Alfred Perritt


b
Mehitabel /m1810 John Tarrant


*
Children mentioned in their father's May 9, 1808 will, probated Sept. 5, 1808 in Laurens County, 


South Carolina, Will Bk C-1..


b  
Children per source #1045. Most Sources think Mehitabel did not exist. (1442)

7 
Fh610  
Samuel Bowling was born about 1741 based on Samuel Bolling being sued in court between August 9, 1762 and January 1, 1763. (1745) 

A descendant kit 31223 tested into DNA 7


Descendant kits 1592 and 1809 tested into DNA 7
I strongly suspect that Samuel Bolling was a son, or grandson, of William Bolling (Fh905) (died 1772) and his wife Ann (died 1790) in Orange County, Virginia, who had a son Samuel included in a "longest liver" lease there in 1749. (818) Samuel Bowling was the son of William and Ann Bowling (Fh905) and old enough to be included as the son of William in a lease dated 1749, Deed book 12, page 67, Orange County, Virginia.  If the eldest son, he was probably deceased by 1772 at the time his father, William Bowling, died and son John was accepted as heir-at-law. (279) I am convinced that Samuel Bolling (Fh610) of Laurens County, South Carolina, was the youngest son of William Bolling/Bowling (Fh905) who died in 1772 in Orange County, Virginia. This would make Samuel the brother of my ancestor, John Bolling (Fh367). (1442) William and Ann Bolling (Fh905) had a son Samuel included in a "longest liver" lease there in 1749. (818)  Son Samuel Bowling would have to be 21 to be in the lease so he might have been born about 1728 and his parents married sometime before that. (279) This is incorrect. The terms of this lease stated that it would be valid until the death of the longest liver. Son Samuel was included in this lease to indicate something similar to a life-time lease for William and Ann since it would be assumed that their son would still be alive when they died. This lease does not indicate a specific birth date for Samuel as would be true were they purchasing the land. Sam, in fact, may have been an infant still in diapers. All that can be said about his age is that he was born before the date of this lease - 1749. The laws concerning ages of those involved in a lease of land are not the same as the laws applied to a sale of land. (1745) William Bolling, his wife Ann, and son Samuel leased 57 acres of land, 1749, in Orange County, Virginia, per Deed Book 12.  (160) I have received information from others, and seen notes, about a Samuel Bolling who was in Laurens County, South Carolina.  There are those who insist that he was the Samuel, son of William and Anne (Fh905), rather than William and Amelia (Fh830).... I have no way of knowing.  I would love to find out what happened to Samuel, son of William (Fh905). It seems Samuel went south about that time also - but a lot of the records show him the son of William Bolling (Fh830), son of Capt John and Elizabeth Blair Bolling (sic, the last long since disproved).  He is shown as married to Abigail Choice, daughter of Tully Choice, however, some others dispute this.  We have no idea what happened to our Samuel. (951)
Marriage and Children

Samuel Bolling married 1777 (sic), Martinsville, Henry County, Virginia, Abigail Choice (1759-1832) the daughter of Tully Choice. (304) Samuel Bowling married 1772 Abigail Choice in Virginia.  She was the daughter of Captain Tully and Ann (-----) Choice. (304)(1045) Samuel Bolling married Abigail Choice prior to 28 Mar 1771, which is the date of a gift deed of land made by Tully Choice, Abigail's father, to Samuel Bolling, indicating they had married prior to that. (1442)  I expect that date 1777 was floating around as a leftover from one of the fabricated "Bible Records" by Sarah Sullivan Ervin before this deed turned up. (1442) Tully Choice and his wife Ann Duff were Abigail Choice's parents. (1527)

They had children:


a.  Robert born 1778 (Fh530) (304)(1045) Robert born about 1773/74 (22)(154)(7)


b.  Nancy (22)(154)(7)(1045) Nancy born 1779 (304) I believe that Nancy was first married to an ----- Kellett before 1791 who died in a horse race. Nancy’s third husband was Henry Strange, (1745)


c.  Elizabeth born 1782 (22)(154)(7)(304)(1045) 


d.  Lucinda (22)(154)(7)(304)(1045) Daughter Lucinda was not married in 1808 when her father wrote his will.  Lucinda married James Johnson.  Her first child was born in 1811 and her last child was born in 1832.  Her husband remarried in 1839.  Bible birth records on all the children of Lucinda exists.  (818) Child Lucinda was born about 1789, according to analysis of censuses and events of her life.  By the same sources, she was married in 1809 to James Johnson. (1442)

e.  John (22)(154)(7)(1045) John born 1780 (Fh426) (304) 


f.  Mary (22)(154)(7)(1045) Mary "Polly" (304)  Marry Bolling who married Dr.  Perritt. (391) 


g.  Tully (22)(154)(7)(1045) Tully born 1781 (Fh738) (304) The database that A. Deason Smith (Source 1795) prepared on this family shows that Tully Choice Bolling married in 1823 his 2nd wife, the widow Mrs. Mary Ann (Smythe) Mimms. (1442)

h.  Samuel (Fh611) (22)(154)(7)(304) Samuel Bolling, Jr., was born before 1786. (1442)

i.  Thornberry (22)(154)(7)(1045) 


j.  Mehitabel. (1045) Mehitabel Thornberry.  (304) Mehitabel Bolling was the daughter of Samuel Bolling.  She married John Tarrant.  (160) Mehitabel married 1810 John Tarrant. I believe this, again, is part of misinformation.  I don’t believe she existed. (1745) The "child Mehitable" was definitely not a child of Samuel and Abigail.  Researchers, including Sue Senter, have searched for decades and cannot turn up "hide nor hair" of any such person with a husband John Tarrant.  Many others have concluded that Mehitable was just "made up." (1442)
Movement

Samuel Bolling was sued in court between August 9, 1762 and January 1, 1763.  That seems to show that he could not have been born in 1758 and been old enough for someone to sue him in late 1762. (1745) Samuel Bolling (Fh610) 28 Mar 1771 - Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (Deed Book 2, p111) receives land from Tully Choice for natural love and affection 207 acres on Snow Creek beginning at William Hall's line. (No Witnesses) signed: Tully Choice. [Source: Pittsylvania Co. VA, Deed Books l, ll, and lll, F232.P6. P292 (1991), Richmond Library] Tully is surely not going to have a 13 year old son in law nor would he give a child 207 acres of land. So, Samuel's supposed 1758 birth date can go by the wayside as misinformation. (1745) Samuel Bolling witnessed a 1772 will of James Waldrope in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (7)(818)  Samuel Bolling was nominated as an Officer of the Militia 1775, Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (22)(154)(7) Samuel Bolling on September 27, 1775, was nominated as an Ensign in the Pittsylvania County, Virginia, militia, per Deed Book 4, pages 293-294. (1722) Samuel Bolling was listed in Oaths of Allegiance - 1777 Pittsylvania County, VA (DNA 6 Web site. The Magazine of VA Genealogy, v.23, #1 (Feb.1985))  Samuel Bolling was in Henry County, Virginia (Henry County split off from Pittsylvania in 1777) and later Laurens County, South Carolina. (7)(818) Samuel Bolling was an Ensign in the Revolutionary War from Virginia. (198) Henry County, Virginia, Tax List 1780, Samuel Bolling (Fh610). See place index for others on that tax list. (1414)(1495) Samuel Bolling and his wife A.B.I. of Henry County, Virginia, sold to Guy Smith of Bedford County, Virginia, 207 acres part of 400 acres by patent granted Tully Choice 16 Sep 1775 and conveyed by Tully Choice to Samuel Bolling. (824) Samuel Bolling witnessed a land deed in Henry County, Virginia 3 November 1781. (824) Samuel Boling sold slaves in Henry County, Virginia, on 28 September 1782. (824) Samuel Bolling was on the 1782-87 taxpayer list of Henry County, Virginia. Also listed in Henry County at that time was Archibald and James Bolling. (7) Samuel Bolling was a taxpayer 1782 in Henry County, Virginia. (347) Samuel Bolling was mentioned in the will of his father-in-law Tully Choice, recorded 1785 in Henry County, Virginia. Samuel Bolling wife was Abe Bolling. (1679) Samuel Bowling went to that part of North Carolina that became east Tennessee.  Archibald Bolling went to North Carolina with Samuel. Later Samuel Bowling went on to Laurens County, South Carolina.  (7) Samuel Bolling had the following land purchases in District 96, South Carolina:  410 acres on the waters of Horse Creek of Reedy River, 4 Sept 1786; 232 acres on the Reedy River, 4 Sept. 1786; and 250 acres (no further location given but a certified plat accompanied the grant) 1 Jan 1787.  (879) Samuel Bowling was granted 335 acres Greenville, SC, Book B, page 363. (http://contentdm.lib.byu.edu/cgi-bin/docviewer.exe?CISOROOT=/FH8&CISOPTR=72461) Samuel Bowling was in the 1790 Census of Laurens County, 96th District, South Carolina with 2-3-5-0-0. (18)

Lauren's District South Carolina: 

Deed Book D 

pg 50-51 2 Jan 1790  Samuel Boling (Fh610)  (Ninety Six Dist. Laurens Co) to Drury Sims (same) 55L Stg for 150 acres on both sides of Reaburm Creek, bd on Patrick Reylier, Tully Choice, part of tract of 20 acres granted to  Samuel Boling  by William Moultrie Esq Govneror by patient date 1 Jan 1787, wit: Thomas Baskite, John (J his mark) Willson,  Robert Boling ,  Jonathan Cries.  Signed  Samuel Boling   John Wilson made oath to Daniel Wright date 6 Mar 1790. Rec: 4 Oct 1791. (1414) Abel Bowling was in next household to Samuel in 1790 and 1800. (946) Samuel Bolling was a witness, Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina    Aug. 21, 1799 Benjamine "Townsin", executor of Thomas Townsin deceased, planter (Greenville Co) to David Tranum (same); for $50 sold 36 ac on SW side of Horse Cr waters of Reedy R; border: John Camp,   Townsin, Jinins Hulsey, & Thomas "Arndas"; part of a grant (no date) to John Nisbet. (signed) Benjamine Townsin; Witness Joseph Dunklin &  Samuel Bolling wit. oath by  S Bolling  before Joseph Dunklin; rec. Sept 23, 1799; Book E page 356. (1615) Samuel Bolling sold land Books F - G  (1800 - 1807) Greenville County, South Carolina  Sept. 27, 1799   Samuel Bolling ("Laurence" Co, SC) to Alexander Duvall (Greenville Co) ; for L50 sold 232 ac on waters of Reedy R; border: joined on "S15W" by Beasure, S20W on John Bennett, SE & SW on "Beasher" &  Samuel Bolling. (signed) Samuel Bolling ; witness Albert Robins, &  Tully Bolling (Fh738) proved Sept. 17, 1801 by Albert Robins before Benjamin Pollard JP; recorded Nov 21, 1801; Book F page 331. (1615) Item 1874. Sept. 27, 1799 Samuel Bolling (of "Laurence " Co, SC) to Alexander Duvall (Greenville Co); for 50 pounds sold 232 ac on waters of Reedy R; border: joined on "S15W" by Beasure, S20W on John Bennett, SE & SW on "Beasher" & Haden, NE on Bond & Gilliam, & NW & SE on Lewis Duvall; granted Sept. 4, 1786 by Gov. Wm Moultrie to Samuel Bolling. (signed) Samuel Bolling; witness Albert Robins, & Tully Bolling; proved Sept. 17, 1801 by Albert Robins before Benjamin Pollard JP; recorded Nov. 21, 1801; book F p. 331. (1615c) Ensign Samuel Bolling was the son of William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling.  Samuel removed after the Revolutionary war with his wife to Laurens County, South Carolina, where he died there in 1808.  He married Abigail Choice the daughter of Capt.  Tully Choice, Sr. (391) Samuel Bolling had a will May 9,1808, probated September 5, 1808, Laurens County, South Carolina.  Names wife Abie Bolling; youngest sons Samuel and Thornbury; youngest daughters Lucinda and Polley; son John; all his children -Robert, Nancy Sullivant, Elizabeth Dunklin, Tulley Bolling, John Bolling, Lucinda Bolling, Samuel Bolling, Polly Bolling, Thornbury Boling.  Witnesses were William Choice, Mary Choice, and Tully Choice. (7) Samuel Bolling died 1808 in South Carolina. (951) Samuel Bolling died 1808.  (198) Samuel Bowling died 1808 in Laurens County, South Carolina. (7) Samuel Boling had a will filed in Laurens County, South Carolina in the period 1802 -1809.  (24)  Samuel Boling had a will 1802-1809, Vol. 1, Section C.1, page 99, Laurens County, South Carolina.  (308)  Samuel Bolling died testate 1808 in District 96 which later became Laurens County, South Carolina.  (304) Will of Samuel Bolling (Fh610) May 9, 1808
In the name of God, Amen.  I Samuel Bolling of the State of South Carolina, Laurance District, living on Readi River, planter being in health of body and of sound mind memory and understanding, praised by God for the same.  I do make this my last will and testament in manner and form following.  I give  devise and bequeath unto my beloved wife Abi Bolling the house and plantation where I now live, during her widowhood or natural life.  And then at her death the land is to be divided equally between my two youngest sons Samuel Bolling and Thornberry Bolling, also a good horse, bridle, and saddle, and feather bed and furniture, cow and calf each.  And also my two youngest daughters Lucinda Bolling and Polly Bolling a good horse, bridle, and saddle, and feather bed and furniture, cow and calf each.  And to my son John Bolling feather bed and furniture, cow and calf.  And after my lawful debts is paid the remainder of my estate to remain  in my wife Abi Bolling hands till death.  And then to be divided equally between all my children Viz., Robert Bolling, Nancy Sullivant, and Elizabeth Dunklin, and Tully Bolling, and John Bolling, Lucinda Bolling, and Samuel Bolling, Polly Bolling, and Thornberry Bolling.  I hereby appoint and ordain nominate, appoint and constitute my beloved wife Abi Bolling executrix and my son Robert Bolling and Tully Bolling and John Bolling and Samuel Bolling Executors of this my last will and testament.  Hereby revoking and making void all wills heretofore made by me and declaring that a majority of the above named persons or the survivors  of them shall absolutely and finally determind and decide all disputes or contentions of whatever nature arising in the Excecution of this my will.  In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 9th day of May, 1808.  Signed, sealed, declared, and published by the above named Samuel Bolling as and for his last will and testament.  In the presence of us who at his request and in his presence have subscribed our names as witnesses thereto. 
William Choice
Mary Choice
Tully Choice                                  Samuel Bolling (seal) (1414)

Things that have been proven wrong.
Samuel Bowling was born 1752 in Virginia. (22)(154) Samuel Bolling was born 1758. (198)(304) Samuel Bolling/Bowling was the son of William and Amelia Aureilla (Randolph) Bolling/Bowling (Fh830). (22)(154)(304)(946)(951)(960) His alleged parents were William and Amelia (Randolph) Bolling.  I can find no evidence in Virginia records that either of these people existed. (818) Samuel Bolling was born in Halifax County, Virginia, the part that later became Pittsylvania and still later Henry County, Virginia. (304)(960) Samuel Bolling apparently he had brothers Archabald, John, and Rolfe.  They came to Henry County, Virginia from Halifax County, Virginia.  John, Archibald, and Samuel were in the Militia.  Their father William Bolling was killed in 1776.  Their mother Amelia and John Bolling and his family stayed for a time in Henry County, Virginia, and the rest went to South Carolina. (946) I have a copy of Samuel's bible. (946) Samuel Bolling wrote this in his Bible: "I will write downe some facts for my children to remember. John Bolling II and Elizabeth Blair were my grandparents. She was daughter to Dr. Archibald Blair and Mary Wilson. One of their children was my father William Bolling b. 5 May 1731. My mother Amelia was daughter to Richard Randoph and Anne Meade, my parents were 2 cousins, he being 5th and she 6th in desent from Princess Pocahontas. Our family left Virginny in 1780 and settled in Lauren County, South Carolina. Many relatives and connections came with us or shortly after. Among there were James Sullivan Senior, who married as 1st wife Matoaka, older sister of my father. Another sister Jane married William Hopkins, Rolfe, Archibald had descendants to come. I myself married 2 Nov 1772 Abigale Choice daughter to Tully Choice. A sister of his married James Sullivan as 2nd wife. I had 2 brothers and 2 sisters: Archibald, John, Ann, Amelia, Matoaka." (1515) There is a Samuel Bolling Family Bible Record. At the bottom of what I have it states "Bolling Bible records owned by Sara Sullivan Erwin of Ware Shoals, S.C. The original of this sheet was "certified". (no date) I find now that she was an author of a book printed in 1949 (See source #1045). So maybe she had this bible record 50 years ago.  The Samuel Bolling Bible Record that I have gives Samuels birth date as of 27 September 1758.  Sara Sullivan Erwin (early holder of the Bolling Bible) also had the "James Sullivan Bible Record". Apparently an article in Magazine of Virginia Genealogy, Vol. 25, #4, pp3-13  the author Carolyn Bland, "proves" the record was a fake. This revealed that another "Bible record" which came from the same source as the "Samuel Bolling Bible" was shown to be factually inaccurate. Learning of this, I corresponded with another descendant of Samuel Bolling, Miss Sue Senter. She informed me that the Bolling Bible was not correct. She had corresponded with Mrs. Carolyn Bland, the author of the article in the Magazine of Virginia Genealogy who confirms that both Bibles Records are very similar in wording, abbreviations and structure. Mrs. Bland went into great amount of detail. As was revealed when Mrs. Bland corresponded with Sue Senter, both the Samuel Bolling "Bible record" and the James Sullivan "Bible record" are not the genuine article". (1442) 
7  
610i  
Thornebury Bowling bought items at the January 14, 1820 estate sale of Solomon Hopkins.  Thorneberry Bowling had a estate December 9, 1832, Laurens County, South Carolina.  Josiah N.  Bowling was executor of the estate. (7)  Thornberry Bowling had a will 1825-1853, Vol. 2, Section F, page 52, Laurens County, South Carolina. (308) Will of Thornberry Bolling  (610i) In the name of God, Amen.   I Thornberry Bolling of the State of South Carolina and Laurens District, being in a low state of health but of sound and disposing mind memory and understanding, do make and declare this to be my last will and testament in manner and form following, that is to say.  After my lawful debts is paid my will and desire is that all the balance of my estate both real and personal be and remain in the hands of my mother Abigail Bolling during her lifetime, and at her death, to be distributed as follows.  That is to Thornberry Bolling (son of Samuel Bollng) my share and interest in the Fork School Library Society and one hundred dollars in cash to Samuel Perrett (son of Alfor Perrett) one hundred dollars in cash.  To Samuel Bolling son of John Bolling my share and interest in the land same John Bolling lives on, laying in the State of Alabama.  To my four brothers Robert Bolling, Tully Bolling, John Bolling, Samuel Bolling one dollar each.  To my three sisters Nancy Strange, Lucenda Johnson and Polly Perrett one dollar each.  The heirs of my sister Elizabeth Dunklin one dollar divided amongst them and all the balance of my estate both real and personal.  I give and bequeath to Henderson Sullivan and Joseph Johnson to be equally divided between them by my executors here after named.  Lastly, I nominate and appoint Tully Bolling, Henderson Sullivan and Joseph N. Johnson executors of this my last will and testament by them to be preformed.  In witness ofI have hereunto signed my name and fixed my seal this 13th day of June, 1822. Signed, sealed and published in presents of us. Mieajah Berry Tully Bolling Sophia Choice Thornberry Bolling (Seal) (1414)

7 611. Samuel c1789-c1862/m1807 1/w Elizabeth Townsend (c1790-<1853)--His father was Samuel 



#610


*a
Martha Ann d<1865/m1840 Edward Keeton


*a
Minerva Amanda 1815-1884/9/m1833 Edward or Edmund Wood Garrison (1809-1901)


*a
Benjamin Franklin 1814/20-1893/m1840 1/w Elizabeth (P. or E.) Wilkerson




2/w m1878 Nancy Barton Ivey


*a
Mary E. bc1824/m1849 T.W. McCary


*a
Thornberry Washington b1817/24-d1885/m1838 Nancy B. Radford (1824/5-d>1889)


*a
Louisa/Laseras D. 1825-d>1850/John A. McKuan


*a
Samuel Milton 1827-1904/1/w Amberchett -----?, 2/w m1857 Nancy Ann B. 





Dobynes/Dobine/Dobyns


*a
Elizabeth Parthenia 1828-1900/m1845 Nathan Smith Edwards


*a
Nancy Caroline 1832-1893/m      Solomon Hopkins (1830-1862)


*a
Tully Spraggins 1832/3-1909/10/m1856 1/w Mary Martha Bennett (1838-1905)




2/w m1905 Elzora Viola Tiller Henley


*a
Sanders Alexander b1835/mc1860 Julia A. Martin b1841 


*a
Sarah Samanthia b1837/1/h m1850 James F. Rutledge, 2/h m1857 John B. Dunklin




3/h m1870 Elijah Morris 


  a
Ward Townsend bc1837


*
John L. 1840-1915/Ann Judson Tubbs



2/w m1853 Mrs. Disdemiah (Cates) Henry (1810-1878)—See 239f 


*
Children per Sources #987 and #988


a
Child per Source #1153

7 
Fh611 
Samuel Bolling was the son of Samuel and Abigail (Choice) Bolling (Fh610) (22)(154)(7)(304) Samuel Bolling, Jr., was born before 1786. (1442)
Marriage and Children
Samuel Bolling Jr. married Elizabeth Townsend and they had a son Martin Costen Bolling who married Kazziah Jane Bridges. (783) Samuel Bolling had a daughter Miss Bolling who married 1833 Edmund Garrison in Greenville County, South Carolina. (592)  A son Laseras D. Bolling was born 1825. (1153) See Family Group section for children per various sources. (987,988,1153) Samuel c1789-c1862/m1807 1/w Elizabeth Townsend, 2/w m1853 Mrs. Disdemiah (Cates) Henry. Her first husband was Hugh Henry. (1745) 

Movement
Samuel Bowlen was in Laurens District, South Carolina, in 1810 in household 027. (9) Samuel Bolling was in the 1850 Census of Perry County, Alabama. (1153)  

Death
Samuel Bolling died about 1862/3 in Perry County, Alabama. Samuel Bolling had a will (1153)

7  623. Samuel 1764-1806/m1797 Susannah Brewer bc1770--His father was John #367


*
William Ransom 1799-wp1860/m     Ellen Bell--See Family Group #912


*
Other children


*
Samuel H. b1806-d>1842/m       Elizabeth -------


*
Children per Source #1442

7  
Fh623,367c  
Samuel Bolling (Fh623,367e,7) was born 1764 the son of John Bolling (Fh367). (1442) Samuel Bolling/Bowling, based on data in Orange County, Virginia, records, I believe Samuel Bolling was a son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bolling (Fh367). I believe Samuel was listed in a 1785 tax list as a son age 16-21 in his father's household. (818) Samuel Bowling was born about 1768 in Orange County, Virginia, the son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bowling. As a tithable male he was on the tax list of his father, John Bowling, for the first time in 1785. He was not found on a tax list again until he was in Oglethorpe County, Georgia in 1797, along with his father John and brother Henry. 

Marriage

Samuel Bowling married Susannah Brewer Sept 15, 1797 in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. (Marriage Book A and B) (279) Samuel Bolling married Susannah Brewer. See Family Group for some of their children. (1442)

Movement

Samuel Boling and Henry Boling (Fh252) in Oglethorpe County, Georgia are under list of tax defaulters in 1794. (900) Samuel Bowling lived in Clarke County, Georgia. (279) I found Samuel Boling in Clarke County, Georgia, who married 1797 and died 1806. Also there were Henry, Thomas, Edward, William D., Alexander, Milly, Elizabeth, and Thornberry born 1777 in Virginia. Thought all might be siblings or otherwise related. (901)   

Death

Samuel Bowling died in 1810 (sic). (279) In Clarke County, Georgia, 1806, Grantor: Samuel Boling (Deceased) and Grantee: Henry Boling, Administrator's bond. (900) The "Orphans of Samuel Bolling" of Clark County, Georgia, were in the 1807 Lucky Land Lottery in Georgia. (900) Samuel Boling had estate papers, 1806-1820 in Clarke County, Georgia. (1461) Heirs of Samuel Boling (367f), along with Thomas Boling (Fh734), John Boling, Henry Boling (Fh252), and Edward Boling (Fh203), were on the 1810 tax list of Clarke County, Georgia. (1461) Samuel Bolling died 1806 in Clarke County, Georgia. After Samuel Bolling died his widow Susannah remarried Samuel's brother Henry Bolling (Fh252,367i,7). (1442)

7 737. Thornberry 1777-1837/1/w m1798 Lucy Ann Rainey (1779-1825)--His father was John #367


a*
William 1799-1801-twin


a*
James 1799-1801-twin


a*
Lucy Ann 1801-1870/m1834 Moses Bledsoe (1783-1845)


a*
Matthew Rainey 1802-1822


a*
Martha Ann Watkins 1804/m     Pleasant Jones


a
James Thornberry b1807


a
John Newton 1813-d>1837



2/w m1828 Mrs. Mary Ann "Polly" (Aycock) Wright (1793-1881)


a*b
Emily b1830/1/h m1847 Thomas Eli R. Harris, 2/h m1861 James Franklin Morton


a*b
Penelope 1832-1911/1/h ----- McMurray, 2/h John Berry Hay Lumpkin or m John Berry Hay


a*b
Thornberry Jackson 1834-1919/m1860 Mary Elizabeth Smith (1841-1905)


*
Children per sources 901 and 930


a
Children per source 279


b
Children by second wife per source 1232



See Source #1233

7
Fh737 
Thornberry Bowling was born June 8, 1777 in Orange County, Virginia, the son of John and Ursula Bowling (Fh367). He was around 17 years of age when his father and family moved to Georgia.  His first marriage was on Jan 26, 1798 to Lucy Ann Rainey (1779-1825).  Thornberry Bowling married second June 19, 1828 to Mrs. Mary Ann "Polly" (Aycock) Wright the widow of Winfield Jett Wright. (279)  Thornberry Bowling was born 1777.  He married first Lucy Rainey. They had children: William and Jane (twins) born 1799, Lucy A.M.  born 1801, Matthew Rainey born 1802 and Martha Watkins born 1804.  Thornberry Bolling lived in Oglethorpe County, Georgia.  (7)(165)(166)  I found Thornberry born 1777 in Virginia in Clarke County, Georgia.  Also there were Samuel, Henry, Thomas, Edward, William D., Alexander, Milly, Elizabeth.  Thought all might be siblings.  (901) 

7 738. Tully 1781-1844/1/w Catherine Gaines (1795-1821)--He father was Samuel #610



Thaddeus C. 1816/18-1866/m     Lou -----



2/w m1823 Widow Mary Ann (Smythe) Mimms



Harriet M. b1826/----- Charles



Abigail M. b1828/H. Stokes



Martha Ann b1830/----- Hickson

7 
Fh738 
Tully Bolling was born 1781 the son of Samuel and Abigail (Choice) Bolling (Fh610).  Tully married first Catherine Gaines (1795-1821).  They had son Thaddeus born 1818 who married Lou -----. (304)  Tully Bolling was a witness Books F - G  (1800 - 1807) Greenville County, South Carolina  Sept. 27, 1799   Samuel Bolling ("Laurence" Co, SC) to Alexander Duvall (Greenville Co) ; for L50 sold 232 ac on waters of Reedy R; border: joined on "S15W" by Beasure, S20W on John Bennett, SE & SW on "Beasher" &  Samuel Bolling. (signed) Samuel Bolling ; witness Albert Robins, &  Tully Bolling (Fh738 would seem too young if born 1781) proved Sept. 17, 1801 by Albert Robins before Benjamin Pollard JP; recorded Nov 21, 1801; Book F page 331. (1615) Item 1874. Sept. 27, 1799 Samuel Bolling (of "Laurence " Co, SC) to Alexander Duvall (Greenville Co); for 50 pounds sold 232 ac on waters of Reedy R; border: joined on "S15W" by Beasure, S20W on John Bennett, SE & SW on "Beasher" & Haden, NE on Bond & Gilliam, & NW & SE on Lewis Duvall; granted Sept. 4, 1786 by Gov. Wm Moultrie to Samuel Bolling. (signed) Samuel Bolling; witness Albert Robins, & Tully Bolling; proved Sept. 17, 1801 by Albert Robins before Benjamin Pollard JP; recorded Nov. 21, 1801; book F p. 331. (1615c) Mrs. Catherine Bolling, wife of Capt. Tully Bolling, died 1821, age 26, Barnwell District, South Carolina.  (592) The database that A. D. Smith prepared on this family shows that Tully Choice Bolling married in 1823 his 2nd wife, the widow Mrs. Mary Ann (Smythe) Mimms. (1442) Tully Bolling married second widow Mrs. Mary Ann (Smythe) Mimms of Cambridge. They had children: Harriet born 1826 who married ----- Charles, Abigail born 1828 who married H. Stokes, and Martha born 1830 who married ----- Hickson. (304)  Tully Bowling bought items at the January 20, 1817 estate sale of Lewis Saxon, Laurens County, South Carolina. (7) 

SC Index 1810 Census Greenville Dist SC
Name:

Page:
Boling, E.
114
Elliott Fh2285,6Z
Boling, Joh
112
John Fh416,418e 5N
Boling, O.
115
Obediah Fh4667,418d 5N
Bolling, Tully
106
Tully Fh738, 610g

Tulley Boling was in the 1820 Census of Greenville County, South Carolina.  (535) Tully Bolling died 1844. (304)  Tully Boling had a will 1840-1853, Vol 2, Section C, page 100, Greenville County, South Carolina. (308)(24)  Tully Bolling was born 1774 or 1778 to Samuel and Abigall (Choice) Bolling in Greenville County, South Carolina.  Tully Bolling married 1828 Abbeville, South Carolina, Mary Ann Smythe daughter of Dr. Andrew and Matilda (Shaw) Smythe.  Tully Bolling died 1844. (433).

Greenville County, SC Probate Office, Roll 8, Apt. 10, File No. 10, 1844

WILL OF TULLY BOLLING (Fh738)
The State of South Carolina

In the name of God, Amen.

            I, Tully Bolling of Greenville District and state aforesaid being now of sound mind and desposing memory do make this to be my last Will and Testament, and hereby revoke all former wills by me made, and establish this only

            First, I will and direct my Executors to pay all my just debts and funeral expense immediately after my death.

            Secondly of the slaves and their increase that I acquired by marriage with my first wife the Mother of my son, Thaddeus C. Bolling, I have heretofore given to my said son Eleven namely Arinestead, Patty, Louisa, Ananias, Hezekiah, Anthona, Terry, Rachel, Siscilly and Thomas which gift I now ratify and confirm and now further give and bequeath to my said son the following seven slaves, namely Billy, Linda, Nelson, Maria, Clarinda, Sicilly, the second, and Perry being the remainder of those received with my first wife with their increase, To have and to hold unto the said T. C. Bolling his heirs and assigns forever and these are not to enter into further estimation of my estate.  I have also given to my said son the following slaves and do hereby give to him Richey, Clarrissa, David, Eliza, George and Henry with their future increase, To have and to hold to him and his heirs forever, and for which last seven slaves he is to be charged two thousand dollars, I have convey’d to my said son a Tract of Land containing two thousand and fifty one acres which he now lives on, for which he is to be charged two thousand dollars, I further give to my said son a negro man, Peter, value at one hundred dollars and fourteen hundred dollars in cash to have and to hold to the said T. C. Bolling and his heirs forever.

            Thirdly, I have conveyed a tract of land and twelve slaves to and for the use of my Daughter, Harriet M. Bolling by deeds which are to be referred to and taken as part of this will and for which she is to be charged with Fifty five hundred dollars on a settlement of my Estate.

            Fourthly, I have conveyed a tract of land and ten slaves and for the use of my Daughter, Abigail M. Bolling by deeds which are to be referred to and taken as part of this will and for which she is to be charged on settlement with my estate fifty five hundred dollars.

            Fifthly, I have conveyed a tract of Land and Ten slaves to and for the use of my Daughter, Martha A. Bolling by deeds which are to be referred to and taken as part of this will for which she is to be charged on a settlement with my estate fifty four hundred dollars and I give and bequeath to her one hundred dollars in cash to make her lot of slaves equal with her sisters.  I also give and bequeath to each of my three daughters above named, as they come of age or marriage a horse saddle and bridle (of common value) two feather beds and furniture and two cows and calves which is not to be charged to them as it is to balance against property given to son and step daughter that is not charged to them.

            Sixthly I give and bequeath to my dearly beloved wife, Mary Ann Bolling the tract of Land I now own known as the home tract containing eleven hundred and eighty eight acres and seven slaves namely Jim, Moses, Isham, Jacob, Pheby, “Emaline and Richard, To have and to hold the said tract of land and slaves for and during her natural life, and after her death to be equally divided between my four children, I also give and bequeath to my wife my household and kitchen furniture plantation tools wagons carriages horses, cows, hog, and stock of every kind (except what is given to my daughters) for her use during her life and at her death to be equally divided between my four children, I also give my wife one thousand dollars to be disposed of at her discretion.

            Seventhly, Eight slaves that I acquired by my wife after the death of her mother, one named Jackson, I give and bequeath to my step daughter, Mrs. Sarah S. Sullivan one named Jarret, I give and bequeath to my daughter Harriet M. Bolling, one named Sampson, I give and bequeath to my daughter Abigail M. Bolling and one named Abram to my daughter Martha Ann Bolling to have and to hold to them and their heirs forever, the other four Harriet, Lewis, Lucinda and Amelia, I give to my wife during her life and after her death to be divided between her four children so as to make them equal in the eight slaves.

            Eighthly, all my interest in lots in Pendleton Village and lands adjoining or near them, I give to my wife and her four children, the property to be sold as soon as convenient.  Also all my interest in a tract of land laying near Campbridge in Edgefield District that I acquired by my wife after the death of her mother I give to my wife during her life and after death to be sold and the proceeds to be equally divided between his four children.

            Ninthly, Tract of land lying near Campbridge that I bought from Robert Harrison I give to my wife during her life then I will and direct it to be sold and the proceeds to be divided equally between my four children and Mrs. Sarah S. Sullivan shear and shear alike each taking equally.

            Tenthly, I authorize and empower my executors to execute titles to any lands directed hereby to be sold.

            Eleventhly, I nominate, constitute and appoint my son, T. C. Bolling, Henry F. Johnson and Micajah Berry, Executors of this my last Will and testament.

Witness my hand and seal this 14th day of June 1844.

Signed sealed and acknowledged in our presents who in the presents of each other and in the presents of this testator subscribed their names as witnesses to the due execution hereof the day above.

Lewis H. Shumate                                            Tully Bolling

Benj. Gaines

Allen Chandler

South Carolina, Greenville District.

Sworn to and subscribed in open court this 11th day of November 1844.

Jno. Watson, O. G. D.                                      Lewis H. Shumate

7 774. William 1765->1816/m1788 Phoebe Hawkins (bc1769-d>1850)--His Father was John #367



William (?) 1789-1855



John P. bc1792-d>1850/m1816 1/w Cisley Tate, 2/w Lucy ------See Family Group #377 



Polly



Sidney



Jane

7  
Fh774 
William Bowling was born 1765. (279)  Based on data in Orange County, Virginia, records I believe William Bolling was a son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bolling (Fh367). (818) William Bowling was born in 1765 in Orange County, Virginia, son of John and Ursula (Bell) Bowling (Fh367), and had a twin brother John Bowling Jr.  When both turned 18 years old their names were placed as titheable males on their father's 1783 tax list. William Bowling name was on his individual tax list in 1787. (279)(944) 
Marriage and Children

William Bolling had a marriage bond issued to marry Phoebe Hawkins "spinster" in 1788, witnesses: John Boling (Probably either father Fh367 or brother 367d) and Samuel Bowling (UK). (818) William Bolling married 1788 Phebe Hawkings Poindexter in Orange County, Virginia. (1213) William Bolling married Phebe Hawkins 1788 in Orange County, Virginia.  (269) William Boling married Phoebe Hawkins 1788 in Orange County, Virginia.  Witnesses were: John Boling and Samuel Boling.  Bondsman was James Gaines. (563) William Bowling married Phoebe Hawkins. (279) William Bolling born 13 July 1758  Westmoreland County, Virginia (sic, this would be 1.6a) married Phoebe Hawkins (1442) William Bowling was of Orange County, Virginia. (279) William Bowling was on the 1787 census of Orange County, Virginia, with 1 horse.  (551) I believe William was listed in a 1785 tax list as a son age 16-21 in his father's household.  He was listed separately from his father in the tax lists of 1787, 1790 and 1793. (818)

Movement

William Boling was Bondsman for the April 19, 1791 marriage of John Boling, Jr. (his brother 367d) and Susannah Bell, Spinster.  Susannah's father Thomas Bell signed permission. (Orange County, Virginia, Marriage Book 1, page 28). (944)  William Bowling Sr.  died about 1797.  (279) Orange County, Virginia court on Tuesday, 29 April 1794 granted William Boling 2 dollars for guarding prison 4 nights and $2.50 for patrolling 15 hours this per Order Book 3, page 225.  (279) The marriage bond for William Bowling and Phoebe Hawkins was signed by William Bowling and James Gaines.  There is also a letter of consent signed by Phoebe Hawkins Poindexter.  Her relationship to the bride was not stated.  In the Marriage Register for Orange County, Virginia, Book 1, page 22 there is recorded the marriage license of William Bowling and Phoebe Hawkins, spinster, dated Oct. 1, 1789, Witnesses were John Bolling and Samuel Bolling (John his twin brother and Samuel a younger brother).  Tax records in Orange County, Virginia, have William Bowling each year 1790 through 1799. (279)(944)  The William Boling who was guarding the prison with Roger Bell in 1794 was a third William Boling as the other two (Fh905 and 905b) were deceased by 1794. This is probably the son of John Boling, Sr., "eldest son and heir" of William Bolling (Fh905) and "heir at law to William Bolling (905b), his brother".  (944) Sometime after 1799 court records prove they were living in Louisa County, Virginia in 1804 and 1816.  (279)(944)  William Bowling is in the Louisa County, Virginia, Deed Books J, L, and M with entries 1802, 1810, 1814, 1815, and 1816. (944)  Per Order Book 4, page 581, Orange County, Virginia, at the court held 13 May 1804, William Bowling was allowed one days accommodations for petition at the March court and traveling 18 miles from Louisa County and accommodations at this court.  It appears that William Bowling was a witness in the case of Pollock vs. Lanton.  It seems that William Bowling was living in Louisa County, Virginia in 1804.  (944) William Bowling was on the 1810 tax list of Louisa County, Virginia.  (380) John (Fh367) and Ursula's son William (Fh774) married Phoebe Hawkins in 1788 in Orange Co., VA with his brothers John (Jr.) and Samuel as witnesses and James Gaines as surety.  When John Bolling (Jr.) married Susannah Bell in 1791 in Orange Co., VA, William Fh774 was the bondsman.  William stayed in Orange until 1799, then he and Phoebe moved to Louisa Co., VA and were there at least through 1816.  William's son John P. Bolling was in TN in 1850, with Phoebe in the household, age 81.  John B. had  married Cicley Tate in Louisa Co. in 1816. (1442)
7 905. William 1705-1772/mc1727 Ann ------  bc1710-1790--Head of Family String DNA 7

ab
John 1741-1811/m<1762 Ursula Bell--See Family Group #367



A descendant kit 36240 tested into DNA 7

ab
Samuel c1743-1808/m1777 Abigail "Abe" or "Abie" or "Abby" Choice (1759-1832)--See Family 



Group #610




Descendant kits 1592, 1809 and 31223 tested into DNA 7

ab
William bc1747-d1778--Died in service


ab
Jesse bc1745-d1776--Died in service


ab*
Thornberry bc1749-d>1799--never married


ab*
Sarah d>1790


*
Named in mother's 1790 will, Will Book 3, Page 216-217, Orange County, Virginia


a
Children per source #818


b
Children per source #279

7  
Fh905 
William Bowling by estimate was born about 1705. (279) A William Bowlin and John Bowling were on the Orange County, Virginia tax list in 1737, so born before 1706 if age 21. (279) William Bowling (Fh905), 1725-1772, Orange County, Virginia, had a wife Anne. (951) William Bowling parents are unknown.  It has been suggested that his grandfather was William Bowlin (Fh742, 1650-1710) who received a patent for 887 acres in Gloucester County, Virginia. His father was certainly a contemporary of the sons of William Bowlin of Gloucester County, Virginia. There is no proof however.  (279) William Bowling   (Fh905) came from a line, we believe in Maryland, which has uniformly spelled the name with a W, as descendants do to this day. Some records spell his name Bolling. Son John Boling's (Fh367) name is usually spelled Boling. His children went back to the Bolling spelling for the most part. (1725)

Marriage and Children

Son Samuel 905a.  I am convinced that Samuel Bolling (Fh610,905a) of Laurens County, South Carolina, was the youngest son of William Bolling/Bowling (Fh905) who died in 1772 in Orange County, Virginia. This would make Samuel the brother of my ancestor, John Bolling (Fh367). (1442) William and Ann Bolling had a son Samuel included in a "longest liver" lease there in 1749. (818)  Son Samuel Bowling would have to be 21 to be in the lease so he might have been born about 1728 and his parents married sometime before that. (279) This is incorrect. The terms of this lease stated that it would be valid until the death of the longest liver. Son Samuel was included in this lease to indicate something similar to a life-time lease for William and Ann since it would be assumed that their son would still be alive when they died. This lease does not indicate a specific birth date for Samuel as would be true were they purchasing the land. Sam, in fact, may have been an infant still in diapers. All that can be said about his age is that he was born before the date of this lease - 1749. The laws concerning ages of those involved in a lease of land are not the same as the laws applied to a sale of land. (1745) William Bolling, his wife Ann, and son Samuel leased 57 acres of land, 1749, in Orange County, Virginia, per Deed Book 12.  (160) I have received information from others, and seen notes, about a Samuel Bolling who was in Laurens County, South Carolina.  There are those who insist that he was the Samuel, son of William and Anne (Fh905), rather than William and Amelia (Fh830).... I have no way of knowing.  I would love to find out what happened to siblings Sarah and Samuel. It seems Samuel went south about that time also - but a lot of the records show him the son of William Bolling, son of Capt John and Elizabeth Blair Bolling (sic, long since disproved).  He is shown as married to Abigail Choice, daughter of Tully Choice, however, some others dispute this.  We have no idea what happened to our Samuel or to the only daughter, Sarah Bolling. (951) 

Son John 905b.  William Bowling (Fh905), 1725-1772, Orange County, Virginia, and his wife Anne, were parents of John Boling, Sr. (905b,Fh367), with wife Ursula Bell, widow of Francis Wisdom, and daughter of Roger Bell. (951) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was a son of William and Ann ------- (Fh905)...and that he is brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. Jesse died at his mother Ann ------- house...died 1776. William was dead by 11 July 1779 [Orange Co. Va. Minute Book.] (1442) 

Son William 905c. William Bowling (Fh905), 1725-1772, Orange County, Virginia, and his wife Anne, were parents William Bolling/Bowling (905c) who died a Valley Forge on August 20, 1778. (818) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. William was dead by 11 July 1779 [Orange Co. Va. Minute Book.] (1442)

Son Jesse 905d.  John Boling (Fh367), had three brothers, William, Jesse and Thornberry, all of whom were in the Revolutionary War.  The first two died of their wounds, and Thornberry lived long enough (ca 1794) to buy the property of his father from John Boling, Sr., as he left for Georgia with/or to join Bells, Bledsoes and Landrums. (951) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was a son of William and Ann ------ (Fh905)...and that he is brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. Jesse died at his mother Ann ------ house...died 1776. (1442) 

Son Thornberry 905e.  John Boling (Fh367), had three brothers, William, Jesse and Thornberry, all of whom were in the Revolutionary War.  The first two died of their wounds, and Thornberry lived long enough (ca 1794) to buy the property of his father from John Boling, Sr., as he left for Georgia with/or to join Bells, Bledsoes and Landrums. (951) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was a son of William and Ann ----- (Fh905)...and that he is brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. William was dead by 11 July 1779 [Orange Co. Va. Minute Book.] (1442) 

Daughter Sarah 905f. I would love to find out what happened to sibling Sarah. (951) We have no idea what happened to the only daughter, Sarah Bolling. (951)
Movement

William Bowlin and John Bowling were on the Orange County, Virginia tax list in 1737.  It might have been in that part of Orange County that was cut off from Spotsylvania County, in 1734. (279) Orange County, Virginia, Deed Book 12 (pp.67-68): Indenture 24 August 1749: Between George Taylor, Gentleman, of Orange County and William Bowling (Fh905) of same.  In consideration of covenants hereafter mentioned, hath granted to farm lett...one plantation containing 57 acres, it being the land formerly belonging to William Donathan on which Francis Hensley lately lived.  To hold during the natural lives of the said William Bowling, Anne, his wife, and Samuel Bowling his son, or longest liver...paying on 5 Dec. 500 pounds of Tobacco...also every year, first day of February, one fat hen, Capon or pullet, and delivering it at the dwelling house of George Taylor. Signed Geo. Taylor. Witnessed by Matthew Hubbard, William Isbell. Recorded Orange County, Virginia, 28th Nov. 1751. (1414) William Bolling was of St.  Thomas Parish, Orange County, Virginia, in 1753, when he purchased from William Sims 300 acres on a branch of the Pamunky River, per Deed Book 12.  (160) Orange County, Virginia, Order Book 5, page 467 has an indenture between Williams Sims and Annister, his wife and William Boling.  This William Boling was probably the William Boling who died about 1772 or 1773, who "eldest son and heir" was John Boling, per court 28 May 1773.  (944)

Death

William Bolling died 1772. (818)(279) William Bowling had an inventory dated 24 April 1772, recorded 28 May 1772 in Orange County, Virginia. Will Book 2 page 449. (35)(818) Orange County, Virginia court in 1772 granted John Bowling, the eldest son and heir, administration of the Estate of William Bowling, per Order Book 8. (160) Orange County, Virginia court on Friday, 28 May 1773 granted John Bowling (Fh367), the eldest son and heir, administration of the Estate of William Bowling, per Order Book 8, page 256. He is given 30 lbs. 10 shillings. (279) In a 1777 Orange County, Virginia, petition, Ann Boling, swears that she had three sons in Minute and Regular Service and all became sick. One died at her house and that was Jesse who died in 1776, the other two sons (Thornsbery and William) recovered and are now in regular service. This also sworn to by John Boling, per Legislative Petition Req. C 8252. (160) Ann Bollin had a will 20 Feb 1790, recorded 28 June 1790, Orange County, Virginia, naming children: Thornberry and Sarah Bolling. Will Book 3, pages 216-217. (7)(1663) William Bolling's widow Ann died 1790 in Orange County, Virginia. (818) Ann Bollin (Fh905 spouse) had a will in 1790 in Orange County, Virginia. (35) Ann Boling is listed as head of household (3 people) 1790 in Orange County, Virginia. (43)

Things that are probably wrong

I found some information at the Library of Virginia on Ann Sims (sic) Bolling's will (William's wife) mentioning Thornberry and Jane (sic). (1175) I have a xerox copy of the recorded copy of Ann Bollin's will 1790. It does not say anything about the Sims name. Her name is given only as Ann Bollin throughout the will and she signed as Ann (her mark) Bollin. Source (1175) was also incorrect about the children named in the will. They were Thornberry Bolling/Bollin and Sarah Bollin. (1442) 

7
905c
William Bolling/Boling/Bowling was the son of William Fh905. William Bolling/Bowling died a Valley Forge on August 20, 1778. (818) William Bolling enlisted in the 2nd Virginia, February 1777, he died August 1778, in service. This was recorded in the Order Book 1792, Orange County, Virginia. William Boling was listed as a "minute man" in names collected from the Orange County, Virginia "Petitions on file" in the State Library.  (1666) W. Bowling was on the roll of Capt. Francis Taylor's Company. He enlisted between January 29 and March 17, 1776. This from a manuscript account book and papers at the Virginia State Library. (1666) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was a son of William and Ann Sims (Fh905)...and that he is brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. Jesse died at his mother Ann Sims house...died 1776. William was dead by 11 July 1779 [Orange Co. Va. Minute Book.] (1442) 

7
905d
Jesse Boling was listed as a "minute man" in names collected from the Orange County, Virginia "Petitions on file" in the Virginia State Library.  (1666) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was a son of William and Ann Sims (Fh905)...and that he is brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. Jesse died at his mother Ann Sims house...died 1776. William was dead by 11 July 1779 [Orange Co. Va. Minute Book.] (1442) 

7
905e  
Thornberry Bolling was the son of William and Ann (-----) Bowling (Fh905) of Orange County, Virginia. (7)(279) His baptismal name Thornberry has been regarded as evidence that his mother's full maiden name may have been Ann Thornberry. (279) Thornberry Bowling served in the Revolutionary War for six years., from March 17, 1776 until his return to Orange County, Virginia in 1782 with the exception of a few months when Thornberry, Jesse, and William returned home in the late summer of 1776 and were sick. (279) Thornberry Boling was listed in Capt. Dudley's Company, 2nd VA in names collected from the Orange County, Virginia "Petitions on file" in the State Library. (1666) Thornberry Bowling was on the roll of Capt. Francis Taylor's Company. He enlisted between January 29 and March 17, 1776. This from a manuscript account book and papers at the Virginia State Library. Thornberry Bowling was paid for service January 28, 1777 to February 28, 1777, with Captain Francis Taylor's Company, 2nd VA Battalion. (1666) Thornberry Bowling in 1777 was a private in a Virginia Company, Revolutionary War. (42)(353) In a 1777 Orange County, Virginia, petition, Ann Boling, swears that she had three sons in Minute and Regular Service and all became sick. One died at her house and that was Jesse who died in 1776, the other two sons (Thornsbery and William) recovered and are now in regular service. This also sworn to by John Boling, per Legislative Petition Req. C 8252.  (160) I believe Jesse Bolling (905d) was a son of William and Ann Sims (Fh905)...and that he is brother of William Bolling (905c) [who died in the Am. Rev.] &  Thornberry Bolling (905e) [who received Bounty land in Jefferson County, Kentucky]  all three soldiers in 2nd Va. Regt. of the American Revolution. Jesse died at his mother Ann Sims house...died 1776. William was dead by 11 July 1779 [Orange Co. Va. Minute Book.] (1442) Thornbury Bowling, along with Peachy Bledsoe and many others, were “names of private soldiers taken from petitions to the House of Delegates, in 1795”. (1738) Thornberry Bowling was in Captain Taylor's Company of the 2nd Virginia Battalion.  (22)(353) Thornberry Boling, of Orange County, Virginia, bought land from John Boling (Fh367) of Orange County, Virginia and Ursula, his wife, 1784 (Deed Book 18), 100 acres on branches of the North Fork of Pamunky River, adjacent to other land owned by John Boling. (818) Orange County, Virginia Deed Book 18, p. 267, John Boling of Orange County, Virginia and Ursula, his wife, to Thornberry Boling (905e), same County, for L50, current money of Virginia 100 acres on branches of North Fork of Pamunky River, adj. Millon Patent, Uriah Carton's new survey, and John Boling  (Fh367,905a). No witnesses. Proved: 27 Mar 1784. (1725)  His brother John Bowling seems to have sold to Thornberry their mother's dower right of his father's estate in 1784 (Deed Book 18, page 267-268 and Minute Book 2, page 262).  (279)  Thornberry Boling was listed as head of household (3 people) 1785 in Orange County, Virginia. (43) In the census taken in 1785 Thornberry Bowling is listed as head of his household of three white people and the owner of ten black people.  Five years later in 1790 his mother's will proves the white people were his mother, his sister Sarah and himself. (279) Thornberry Bowling and John Bowling were ordered to do road work, Orange County, Virginia, 26 October 1790.(  )Thornberry Bollin along with a sister Sarah, were named in the 1790 will of his mother Ann Bollen/Bollin in Orange County, Virginia. (7)(279) Thornberry Bolling was on the 1787 census of Orange County, Virginia, with 1 horse, and 3 head of cattle.  (551) Thornbury Bowling was a soldier in the Revolutionary War from Virginia serving on the "State Line".  For service he received bounty land warrant #1739.  (569) Thornberry Bowling received land warrant #1739.0 for 100 acres on 10 September 1783 for his three years service as a soldier on the Virginia line. The warrant  was for land in Kentucky (13)(1262)(1341) Thornberry Boling paid taxes for 1 Tithable in Orange County, Virginia, for each of these years- -1782, 1783, 1785, 1787, 1788, 1789, 1790, 1791, 1792, 1794, 1795, 1796, 1797, 1798 and 1799.  (160)  In Minute Book 3, page 358, Orange County, Virginia, there is a deed from Thornberry Bowling to John Bowling acknowledged by said Thornberry and ordered to be recorded at the court held 22 Feb 1796. (944)  Thornberry's mother, Ann Bowling, died in 1790.  He continued his farm activities on his property in Orange County, Virginia, until 1796 at which time he sold the land to his nephew, John Bowling, Jr.  Deed dated Feb. 22, 1796 (Deed Book No. 21, page 41, Orange County, Virginia) One assumption for his reason to sell is that his sister Sarah must have died and his brother John Bowling, Sr. had moved to Georgia. Tradition claims that Thornberry went to Georgia or South Carolina and died a bachelor. (279) Thornberry Bolting (sic) was a Revolutionary soldier drawing land (2 draws) in Oglethorpe County, Georgia. A John Boling had one draw. (1461) Personal ID:  Virginia 10083

Thornberry Bowling

Rank:  Private

Rank Type:  Rank and file

State:  Virginia

Regiment:  2 VAST

Division:  5th Division

Brigade:  1st Virginia Brigade

Company: Quarles'

Monthly Status Data  

March 1778:  

April 1778: Fit for duty 

May 1778: Fit for duty 

June 1778: Fit for duty

Additional Remarks: Rolls of regiment commence March 15, 1778. (1414) 

7 912. William Ransom 1799-1860/Ellen Bell Lee--His Father was Samuel #623



Susan/m       James Lee

7   
Fh912 
William Ransom Boling was born November 27, 1799, Wilkes County, Georgia.  He married Ellen Bell Lee and they had only one daughter and she married a Lee also.  William Ransom Boling died March 1, 1860 in Sumter County, Alabama. (900) William Ransom Bolling (Fh912,623a,7) born 27 Nov. 1799 in Wilkes County, Georgia was the son of Samuel Bolling (Fh623,367e,7) William Ransom Bolling's  will was probated 26 March 1860 in Sumter County, Alabama. William Ransom Bolling married Ellen Bell. Their daughter, Susan Bolling  married James Lee. (1442)

7 921. William Wood 1799-1863/m1820 Martha Combs b1804--His father was Jonathan #4475


*
Eliza 1823-1912/m1843 William Dixon Lester 1815-1880


*a
Susan Wood b1826 KY/m      ------ McCarthan


*a
Laura Pamelia “Millie”b1828 KY/m      Alberry “Burr” L. Alderson


*
Elvira b1829/m       Dr. Will Adair


*a
Samuel Brooking 1833 KY-d<1886 TX


*a
Richard Wood 1835 KY-d1860-66 CSA 


*a
William Wood 1837 KY-d>1886/m1868 Mary Ermine Doran 1849->1877


*a
Mary S. b1843 KY/m       ----- Gaddie


  a
Isaiah Brickley (not a Bowling) b1845


*
Children per Source #1155.


a
Children in Household in 1850 Census of Hart County, Kentucky, page 246.


b
1830 Census of Hart County, Kentucky, Males 000001, Females 21001.

7  
Fh921 
William Wood Bowling was born 1799 in Albemarle County, Virginia, to Jonathan and Susan (Wood) Bowling (Fh4475,367g,7).  In 1820 he married Miss Martha Coombs/Combs, the daughter of Aden and Pamelia (Williams) Combs.  She was born in 1804 and died after 1886.  William and Martha Bowling had three sons and five daughters as follows:


a. Samuel B. d<1886


b. Richard W.


c. William Wood 1837-d>1886


d. Pamelia married ----- Alderson. (806)(810) William Woods Bowling (Fh921) and Martha Coombs. had a daughter Laura Parmelia Bowling born in 1821 in New York.  Laura married Alberry L. Alderson. (?)


e. Eliza Lester


f. Susan Wood


g. Elvira married ----- Adair


h. Mary S. married ----- Gaddie

William Wood Bowling was a farmer and died in 1863. William Wood BOWLING, was born in Albemarle County, Va., February 19, 1799; married, in 1820, Miss Martha Coombs, and became the father of three sons and five daughters:  Samuel B. (deceased), Richard W., William W., Pamelia

(Alderson), Eliza Lester, Susan Wood, Elvira (Adair) and Mary S. (Gaddie).  Martha (Coombs) BOWLING was born February 8, 1804, and is yet living (1886); her parents, Aden and Pamelia (Williams) Coombs, were natives of Virginia, and later residents of Hardin, now Hart County.  William Wood BOWLING was a farmer, and died June 22, 1863; his parents, Jonathan and Susan Wood BOWLING, were of English extraction, and natives of Albemarle County, Va. The former was born May 22, 1767, and the latter November 10, 1877.  They were married in Albemarle County, Va., moved to Kentucky as early as 1804, and located in Hardin County (now Hart). (806) (810) William Wood Bolling was on the 1819 tax list of Hart County, Kentucky; listed on the "G River".  Also on the "G River" was Susannah Bolling, Exr. and John Bolling. (454)  Susannah Bolling could be the widow of Jonathan Bolling (Fh4475). (239)(803)  “G River” is probably the Green River XE "River:Green" . (7)
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